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Financial Summary
BB EE

2010 2009
—E-2F —EENF
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million
BEEET BEAET
Segment Revenue D E
Food and beverages B8R
Hong Kong BE 523 285
Singapore N3 13 17
Mainland China ==l ilNE ] 2 9
538 311
Investments in securities — Hong Kong BHERE-BSB - 7
Natural resources — Mainland China RAZIR - R E A = -
Total A 538 318
Segment Results DEEE
Food and beverages E&K
Segment performance before impairment REITEERESEN
loss on goodwill DERE 15 (23)
Impairment loss on goodwill mEZRERIE (29) (119)
Share of results of associates Frihie e N al & = 11
(14) (131)
Investments in securities BEEE 1 (25)
Natural resources RKARER (5) -
Total B (18) (156)
2010 2009
Segment revenue by geographical areas Segment revenue by geographical areas
it E 2 E WS it E S Bz
2010 2009
Segment performance* Segment performance*
PERE PERER

S

Food and beverages
'R

al resources

BHIR

=

Hong Kong &8
M Singapore #T N4

M Subsidiaries MfIB AT

el

B Associates Bt A a]

[ Mainland China /7 B A

* excluding impairment loss on goodwill &1 K& F& 2 2 i (B /&5 18

D Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited £ =42 25 #% i% B R A )



The following is a summary of the total assets, total liabilities, share

Financial Summary
BBEBE

T RAEERBE=A=T—HIBER

capital and results of the Group as of year ended 31 March for the last FrBRERE  BAFE BANEEHNR -
five years.
Financials (HK$ Million) B%EE(BEEER) 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006
Total assets mEE 503 626 717 749 631
Total liabilities BMERE 100 221 124 268 220
Minority interests DB R — - — 0.20 0.18
Equity attributable to equity holders N2 AR H A
of the Company JE 14 FE 25 403 405 593 481 411
Share capital (note) P A (B 71 )
— in number (Million) -HBE(BEER) 2,255 2,155 2,155 1,901 1,714
— in value (HK$0.05 per share) -HE (R EE.05T) 113 108 108 95 86
Revenue W 25 538* 318 347*%% 752 734
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity RNATIEEREE A
holders of the Company R (EE) H# A (22) (159) 26 34 37
Per Share Basis (HK cents) (note) BRITECGEW) (M)
(Loss)/earnings (B8 &BF (1.0) (7.4) 1.2 1.9 2.2
Dividends % 2 0.6 0.2 1.0 0.7 0.8
Net asset value BEFHE 18 19 28 25 24
Note: Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 30 March 2010, the & BRBEARAARAR_E—TF=ZA=ZTHBBHLER
issued and unissued share of HK$0.5 each has been subdivided into ten shares of ER BRABKSITHE B R AEITRG B RIFAE
HK$0.05 each. The amounts presented have been adjusted to take into account of the BTRERAB®00TZRG - 2 2 HBEEER
share subdivision. FERR (D T 4B {E L S -
Revenue Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
& AT RERFE AELER

(HKS$ Million ¥ & & 7T)
10
09
08
07
06

Dividends per share

BREE

(HK cents 7&1Ill)

(HKS$ Million 5% E & 1)

Net asset value per share

BREEFE

(HK cents 7511l

*  Following the Group’s acquisition of the remaining 51% of the equity
interest in Igor’s in March 2009, Igor’s full-year results have now been
fully consolidated into the Group’s results for the fiscal year 2009/10. As a
result, the Group’s revenue rose by 69.2% from HK$318 million in 2009 to

HK$538 million in 2010.

** The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2008 decreased since
the Group disposed of its Computer and Information Communication

Technology business during the year.

*%

BEEAEER —TTNF = A WE Igor's 82 T51%MR 2N
EmiE Igors NEFEBERE2IRAEEBLE T
Th,/ —TERRFENEERNGEE AR - B » &
SENKEHB =S TNFRBEE318EITIE MN69.2%E
T -TEMHBKS3SET °

HE-_ZZN\E=A=+—ALFEAEENKET
%ﬂmﬁé$%ﬁ’$¢mﬁ B R EMBAE R E
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% The Group is prudently optimistic about the

lifestyle F&B sector’s future prospects. It
will strive to enhance the competitiveness of
its existing businesses in this field, and seek
opportunities to expand them further — in Hong
Kong, Mainland China and overseas - during the
year ahead. ¥

[FREEE T BEANEBHARRLERGFEFELES
WEHNMERREREEEZHEFEL  BEREH
SEREESE—SHREEE  PENREIFE - |

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of Chevalier Pacific
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), I am pleased to present to our
shareholders the annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries

(collectively the “Group”) for the fiscal year 2009/10.

Following the Group’s acquisition of the remaining 51% of the equity
interest in Igor’s in March 2009, Igor’s full-year results have now been
fully consolidated into the Group’s results for the fiscal year 2009/10. As a
result, the Group’s revenue rose by 69.2%, from HK$318 million in 2009
to HK$538 million in 2010. However, due mainly to the impairment in
goodwill for the purchase of Igor’s and the amortisation of the trademark
of Pacific Coffee, which commenced in the financial year beginning on
1 April 2009, the Group recorded a loss of HK$22.1 million for 2010,
compared to a loss of HK$159 million in 2009.

The cash flow from the Group’s operations remained positive,
amounting to HK$83.0 million for the year (2009: HK$31.5 million).
After carefully considering the Group’s anticipated funding requirements
for its operations and investments, the Board has decided to declare a

final dividend per share of HKO.5 cent.

) Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited H = )2 iE R AR A &)

AAEBERKRELTRZDERAERAFAUTAR
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STRATEGY AND OUTLOOK

The Hong Kong economy looks set to continue improving gradually, due
to the sustained economic growth that is expected in Mainland China
and worldwide. Therefore, the Group is prudently optimistic about the

future prospects for the lifestyle food and beverages (“F&B”) sector.

The Group will strive to enhance the competitiveness of its F&B
operations during the year ahead. At the same time, it will remain
mindful about the rental increases that landlords are likely to demand.
Besides seeking further opportunities to expand its restaurant business
in Hong Kong and overseas, the Group is actively looking for strategic
partners to take advantage of the rapid growth of the coffee culture in

Mainland China.

To capture and explore the opportunities that are arising in the natural
resources sector, the Group acquired a 100% equity stake in Great
Dragon Petroleum Limited in October 2009, and it entered into two
Memoranda of Understanding (“MoU”) in February and April 2010.
Although the transactions under consideration are still at the preliminary
due diligence stage, the Group will use its financial strength to explore
potential natural resources opportunities, with a view to expanding its

investment and income base during the coming year.

In closing, on behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity
to express our appreciation to our shareholders, business partners, as well
as to our dedicated staff, for the significant contributions that they made
in the past year. The Group will remain committed to leveraging on its
competitive strengths, its clear development strategies and its excellent
management team in order to maximise the returns for its shareholders

in the coming year.

Chow Yei Ching
Chairman

Chairman’s Statement
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REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

The Group has three reportable segments: Food and Beverages (“F&B”),
Investments in Securities and Natural Resources. The F&B segment
encompasses the Pacific Coffee brand of coffeehouses and the wide
range of restaurants and bars in the Igor’s portfolio. The Investments in
Securities segment invests mainly in unlisted equities and funds, as well
as in fixed-income deposits. The Natural Resources segment includes
the Group’s activities relating to the crude oil trading and mining

exploration.

FOOD & BEVERAGES

Overall Performance

As a result of economic recovery and the full consolidation of Igor’s
performance, the F&B segment’s revenue increased by 72.9% to
HK$538 million during the year under review. However, this segment
recorded a loss of HK$14.4 million after absorbing an impairment of
HK$29.2 million in goodwill for the purchase of Igor’s and a HK$7.2 million
amortisation of the trademark of Pacific Coffee (2009: a loss of
HK$131 million after absorbing impairments of goodwill and fixed assets
of total HK$134 million).

As of 31 March 2010, Pacific Coffee operated 84 coffeehouses (2009: 81)
of which 77 were in Hong Kong (2009: 70), 4 in Singapore (2009: 6) and
3 in Mainland China (2009: 5). All these stores are managed and operated
by the Group’s own teams. They are located in core commercial districts,
prime shopping and residential areas, tourist centres and transport hubs
in their respective cities. Pacific Coffee also made reasonable progress in
its franchise operations during the year, with franchise stores opening in

Macau, Foshan (China) and Malaysia.

Igor’s operated 35 outlets as of 31 March 2010 (2009: 30). These
consisted of 10 restaurants, 15 restaurant-bars, 7 “Wildfire” chain
stores, and 3 specialty kiosks (2009: 10, 12, 8, and nil respectively). The
outlets are located in prime business locations in Hong Kong, mainly in
Central, Wanchai, Stanley, Discovery Bay and Tsim Sha Tsui, as well as in
leading shopping malls. Igor’s also operates a central kitchen called “Blu

Catering”.

1 O Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited H £)Z2 5= KGR 2 &)

Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE & im K 7

ETEBRNDE
AEBEBE=FBATEHNDIE : B - BF
KERRANER o B8R 5 BIE Pacific Coffee
MM BEE LA K Igors EEE T2 MERE &
IR - BAREDEEEREELETESFR
ES  URBEERAGTR - RABRDEE
BASBERHBESRBEENERNETEH -

28

BRERE

HMREEER Il LlgorsMEEZAEGE
AR REBEFE  Z85 58 M=
72.9%% B B 5.3818 70 © AT - B U BB Tgor’sE
H 27 R E B #2,9208 T LA K Pacific Coffee
ZEEEEAE BT Ay BEERSEE
BEILMBT(ZZEENTF K ABRE
BEIMBETHEEREECEERBERAE
BEK131ET) °

HE—_ZT—Z4F=A=1+—H - Pacific Coffee
HQ LA MBEE(Z 2T NF - 81fH]) - H
R77EERB(ZZEZTNE 70@) - 4B EH
ME(ZBZENEFE :6f) R3MEFRBEAM (=
TENF 5 cFMAEEYALAEEZE
B NEE - WA RETERmZLE
2 FEBEYLEER  UKKRESHX
EEINE A o £ A - Pacific CoffeefE i 5F I B2 3
BERTENGEEER  HESTNEERE
RS - PR FIL R SRAEAE -

HEZZ—ZTF=H=+—H 'Igor's &&
BAEEH(ZTENF - 30[) - BHFE1I0HE
B2 - 15 Z BBBIE - 7/ [Wildfire | 38 5 /5 &
AR NESZ(ZZEZNEFE - 2RIA10H -
R2f 8ERE) - EHAUREENSES
¥e BEPR EF AT -WmSE- K
DR EZBEBYFR L o Igors MG E —HA B
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENim KD

Pacific Coffee Hong Kong Operations

With a gradual recovery in the economy, the same-store sales of Pacific
Coffee in Hong Kong stabilised somewhat during the year under review.
They declined by an average of 1.6%, which was an improvement on the
decrease of 2.5% during the fiscal year 2008/09. The main reason for the
continuing decline was the disappointing sales in tourist locations and
financial districts. Yet, despite the difficult environment, Pacific Coffee
continued to grow, and it opened 12 new outlets in various locations

during the year.

Pacific Coffee further enhanced its brand image and continued to focus
on creating a premium coffeehouse profile to differentiate itself from its
competitors. It broadened its F&B product range and showed its concern
for the environment and the community by introducing “Crema Scura”
to its customers in September last year. This organic brand of coffee
beans is grown in harmony with natural ecology. It is also fair-trade-
certified, which helps to alleviate the poverty of the farmers who grow
it and prevent them from being exploited. Furthermore, Pacific Coffee
strengthened its collaboration with Igor’s central kitchen, “Blu Catering”,
in order to increase the food offerings at its branches. This included the

launch of a new range of desserts in March this year.

During the year, Pacific Coffee continued to invest in marketing and
branding activities, both locally and overseas. It undertook a series of
creative marketing promotions in conjunction with various business
partners in order to increase sales and awareness of its brand. As a result
of its strong brand image and the quality of its services and products,
Pacific Coffee succeeded in securing contracts to open a number of
outlets within the office premises of multinational corporations, for the
convenience of their staff and guests.

Pacific Coffee also reviewed and streamlined its internal processes, which
resulted in an improvement in its gross profit margin of 1.1% during the

year under review, without any compromise in quality.

On the wholesale level, the Pacific Coffee brand continued to provide
high-quality coffee solutions to its corporate customers. Although some
of them decided to reduce their spending during the year, Pacific Coffee’s
customer base continued to increase, resulting in a year-on-year rise of
9.1% in its wholesale revenue. Its success in securing a coffee bean and
machine contract at the City of Dreams in Macau also contributed to its
strong growth. Plans are now in place to introduce its coffee solutions in
other hotel chains, as well as serviced apartments and convenience stores,
during the coming financial year. Pacific Coffee is optimistic its wholesale
business will achieve further steady growth as the general economy
continues on the road to a full recovery and corporations become more

willing to increase their spending.

Pacific Coffee & /& ¥ 1%

R 8 & S8 BE  Pacific Coffee £ &5 AY
RAEHERBEFERNEAAREE TR A
ZEENENHBEFEE TH25% KX EETF
HTE16% - FETHENREEZEZHRIK
EHEeRMEEEETBE -AM BEEY
IR £ ) 4&Z 2 IR 35 © Pacific Coffee 1A E &
K BERFREZ @B RAZ2EHIE -

BiE—FIRA MR - Pacific Coffec #E =
FREVERRERFHFAOMEHE o
EXFENA  BBMEFH L Crema Scura M
BT mEAEERERN  ARERT HIR
BEREEMEE R ERMBEEREF A
FREBAER  AS—FH-AFRS5 E
AcBEZMFTINERENR BRI & 8
H B SZHIE o tboh  Pacific Coffee E 5% £
Igor’s #) H R ¥ 55 [ Blu Catering | & 1E + I A8 7R
F=RAHEE— RV R - DA Ao ok s
R mELE o

&N Pacific Coffee # & 1 AN i &2 /G IME B R
mBEHEREEE  TEHZESIERHETT —
R BB EMERE  UIReHEEREMMEMN
HE - BREAELECHMEFREREENE R
MARTS » Pacific Coffee (NINEVIS ZHEH » £
EEC¥MBRAETANRRIEH  AL¥NE
ITREPHERGE -

BRi2 T - BUE

Pacific Coffee TN & M iF A E A
ENERLT - EF

REBEFEAETHEE
KB ARTTL1% °

FERLEEZETE M 0 Pacific Coffee mFR4EE &
TCEXFRESRENMBEERIR - B&E
ERFIOEERFARDESTH B Pacific
Coffee B BRI IFE L KRBT LA B W EIR
FEF9.1% o E A - VIS8 P 3R K i 0in gk
SPGB ERER - B RIA A
B8R TN — R EREEHE DA R
FHAMEHEEE  BEEXABMERE - A
RERBEEEE>HAEHR  ALENEEE
BRI 5E - Pacific Coffee 52 /4 E #HE B¢ ¥ 15 A5 aE 3
—SREEHIER  WHEBHNEE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE R

Pacific Coffee Overseas Operations

The Group’s decision to focus on a franchising strategy in overseas
markets (instead of operating its own stores) and the closure of
unprofitable outlets has resulted in significant improvements in its
business in Singapore, Beijing and Shanghai. Although its overseas
operations were unable to generate a profit in the year under review due
to a lack of economies of scale and fierce competition, Pacific Coffee
retained 7 overseas coffeehouses (2009: 11). Meanwhile, its operating loss
in Mainland China was substantially reduced by 90%, and its Singapore
operation has become profitable for the first time.

Pacific Coffee’s international franchise activities developed steadily
during the year. Franchise stores were opened in Macau, Foshan (China)
and Malaysia, and it received commitments from its franchise partners
concerning the opening of more outlets in the coming years. A partner
in Malaysia has signed a 10-year agreement committing itself to open
and operate 50 new Pacific Coffee stores in the country within the next
5 years. Pacific Coffee has also granted franchise development rights to
a resourceful partner in Guangzhou, and its first store there is scheduled
to open in the coming fiscal year. Pacific Coffee and its partners will
continue to develop the coffee business further, with a special focus on
Mainland China and other Asian countries. This will lead to a viable
revenue stream for the Group, and it will further strengthen awareness of
the Pacific Coffee brand on the global scene.

Igor’s

Given the difficult operating environment during the year, the Group
was cautious about selecting new locations for the expansion of Igor’s
business in Hong Kong. The new outlets that opened during the year
included “Tonic” in Central, a modern, stylish bar with an open-air
terrace that appeals to trendy young professionals; “Café Iguana”, a new

Pacific Coffeel 5p 3£ &
REBRESER AL KRN EINT S
(MIFBEELLE) RBARARBMNTEENE
8 FUEER MK bR R BN EBEZE
WE - BEHBIEBRRS K BRIEFE
RPN ZHEZFTMRBEEEELZER -
Pacific Coffee 3R %8 T 7 /B NIBEE (2=
FUE 11fE) o BERR - R B A #Y £°
&8 1B R IB IR 2 90% 1M iz 7R Fr A0 3 B 3 75
FEEREERRA -

Pacific Coffee HYEIRRFFEFA R BN FE AR
FER - NBF - REHLMERAERE M
BTRETEEE  URIAERHERRETE
FREZDEMNEE - HP  EREATH—
&l & 1E % 1 2 Pacific Coffee 32 5] 7 — B 104F
B % - R ARRSE R E R ML E
508 %71 B Pacific CoffeeMl BEJ&E ° Pacific Coffee
MIEFTEEEETEMN —EEERH -1
FER T R REERAZE —RETLE
JE © Pacific Coffee R E A ERHAGBEE—F
BREMEBEER VYETZEERFEAD R
HMEMER - E8ATNEEFTRIFENK
7 A3 — 2P N5 Pacific Coffee 7EBIFR I
HmEEH -

Igor’s

FAG - AREERERE  AEEEAR
Igor's R E B R EB B UK EFR/ND - FARRK
ZEHFEE BN IR Tonic] - REBXR
Be URHEFSERALTRER  LER
RERBIRA — F KB : [Café Iguana] — — [
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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restaurant and tequila bar concept that offers a contemporary Mexican
dining experience in the Elements shopping complex; and a group of
three specialty kiosks, “Mooz”, “Burger Box” and “Kaiser’s”, all of which
offer high-quality fast casual food at Central Pier.

To cater for the constantly changing needs and tastes of its customers,
Igor’s rebrands and refreshes its existing outlets from time to time.
During the year, “Big Ernies” in Wanchai was transformed into “Blue
Goose”, a relaxing restaurant-bar with sports entertainment, while
“Wildfire” in Soho was re-launched as “Bourbon” bar and smokehouse.

Looking ahead, Igor’s will need to strengthen the performance of its
existing outlets by investing in marketing, operational efficiency, and
improvements in the quality of its food and service. At the same time,
it will continue to seize opportunities to open new outlets in order to
expand its footprint in Hong Kong.

Investments in Securities

Due to the recovery of the global financial markets during the second
and third quarters of 2009 and a significant reduction in the size of its
investment portfolio, the Group’s investments in securities reported a
segment profit of HK$0.7 million (2009: a loss of HK$25.3 million). The
Group will maintain a conservative approach to its investment portfolio
during the coming months.

Natural Resources

The Group is in the preliminary due diligence stage of exploring
opportunities in the natural resources industry, and thus no segment
revenue was achieved during the financial year under review. However, it
will continue to explore and evaluate opportunities in natural resources

in a cautious manner.

VRESTESREAREATIAERERD
BEEAE: R—HARESMERERE -
KA IR E M X /N E =Moozl * [Burger
Box] } [Kaiser’s] °

BOABERTEHNENFTKKEELH ' Igor's
EHMEEENMBAEABEER -FA - £
7R E 1 &9 [ Big Ernies |$8 AU pk /& — B A] 12 {1 28
B IR 24 89 [ Blue Goose| K B & B2 EME - 1M fiz
R & XK [ Wildfire] EF R E - LB A
[ Bourbon J &) )H B K @ E K EHF]JE o

REARR @ Igorsi 7 ZiF 1B ¥ M 5 HEE M &
BREFTEHELHRE  IHERYERBE
Z-UMRERBEHORIR o Btk R -
Igors @EBTEWE  ARELZHIESH -
MREBBHWELR -

HR - ERNEE-_NE=ZEF2H%KLH
MBEFHE  NMEREHENRERERLD
AEEREBEHFBLEHESOERANBE0E T
—TETNF  FEBE25308T) c AEE
HELBHANRREA DB HFRFRE -

X RE R
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S B - A ) B B O B PO 3 R
BEA MR AT AEBE ST BEN S
WA BIIR R AT 5 R A BB S P i o
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Management Profile
EEERBN

Dr CHOW Yei Ching

Executive Director, Chairman, aged 74, is the founder of Chevalier Group
since 1970. He is the Chairman of Chevalier International Holdings
Limited(“CIHL”), a public company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Towngas China Company
Limited and a Non-Executive Director of Television Broadcasts Limited.
In 1995, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary Degree of Doctor of
Business Administration by The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
an Honorary University Fellow by The University of Hong Kong. In 1996
and 1997, he was appointed as an Honorary Member of the Board of
Directors by Nanjing University and was conferred an Honorary Degree
of Doctor of Laws by The University of Hong Kong respectively. Dr Chow
also serves actively in a number of educational advisory committees and
gives substantial support to the aforementioned two Universities in Hong
Kong and The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology in areas
of researches and developments. He is also a Consultative Professor of
Zhejiang University and a Lecture Professor of Sichuan Union University
in the Mainland China. In 2008, Dr Chow was awarded with an Honorary
Degree of Doctor of Social Science by City University of Hong Kong. Dr
Chow’s enthusiasm in public services is evidenced in his appointment
in 2001 as the Vice Patron of The Community Chest in Hong Kong. He
was also appointed as the Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain
in Hong Kong in 2001. Dr Chow also actively participates in various
professional bodies and associations on fraternal and Chinese affairs.
To name a few, he is the Founding President of International Ningbo
Merchants Association Co Ltd, the President of The Japan Society of Hong
Kong and the Permanent Honorary President of the National Taiwan
University-HK Alumni Association, etc. In recognition of his contributions
to local and overseas societies alike, Dr Chow was awarded honorable
decorations from Britain, Belgium, France and Japan and especially the
Order of the Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon in Japan in 2008.
Furthermore, Dr Chow was also awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star from
the Government of the HKSAR in 2004. He is the father of Mr Chow
Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow, Managing Director and Executive
Director respectively of the Company.
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Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar

Executive Director, Managing Director, aged 36, joined Chevalier Group
in 2000 and is the Executive Director of CIHL, a public company listed
on the Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of the Company.
He is also a director of certain companies of the Group. Mr Chow holds
a degree in Master of Engineering from the University of Oxford, U.K.
He is currently a General Committee Member of the Hong Kong General
Chamber of Commerce, a General Committee Member of the Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Chamber of Hong
Kong Listed Companies. He is also a Committee Member of the Shanghai
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC”) and
a Committee Member of the Advisory Council on the Environment,
and a Committee Member of the Infrastructure Development Advisory
Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development Council (“HKTDC”). Mr
Chow is the son of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the Company
and the Chairman of CIHL and is also a brother of Ms Lily Chow, an
Executive Director of the Company.
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Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Executive Director, aged 60, joined Chevalier Group in 1972 and is the
Vice Chairman and Managing Director of CIHL, a public company listed
on the Stock Exchange and a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
is also a director of certain companies of the Group. He is the President
of The Lift and Escalator Contractors Association in Hong Kong, the
Vice-Chairman of the Hong Kong — China Branch of The International
Association of Elevator Engineers, Vice President of the Hong Kong
Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors Limited and a
Registered Lift and Escalator Engineer in Hong Kong. He is a member
of the Guangzhou Committee of the CPPCC. Mr Kuok has extensive
experience in business development and is responsible for the strategic
planning and management of the operations of lifts and escalators,
building construction, building materials and supplies, aluminium
works, electrical and mechanical services, civil engineering, property
development as well as investment projects of the Chevalier Group.
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Miss Lily CHOW

Executive Director, aged 47, joined Chevalier Group in 1990. She is
responsible for strategic planning and business development of the
Group. She is the daughter of Dr Chow Yei Ching, the Chairman of the
Company and is also a sister of Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Managing
Director of the Company.
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Mr CHANG Wan Lung, Robert

Executive Director, aged 46, joined Chevalier Group in 2005 as General
Manager of Business Development. Mr Chang is also a director of certain
companies of the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree of Science from
the University of San Francisco. Mr Chang was with the HKTDC for
more than 17 years, of which he held management positions of increased
responsibility, culminating as Senior Product Promotions Manager. He
also served as Director of Northern China between 1999 and 2002 during
his time with HKTDC.
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Miss FAN Amy Lizhen

aged 48, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on 2
October 2009. She is also a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Miss
Fan graduated from TR ERIER. From 1995 to 2002, Miss
Fan was involved in trading and real estate investment business and
partnered with Shougang Group in China property development. She
was responsible for strategic corporate planning, exploring investment
projects and other information. Since 2005, Miss Fan found Flying Eagle
Aviation Limited with others and has been its chairperson. She assisted
the company, one without airlines backup, to obtain Aircraft General
Terms Agreement (AGTA) license from Boeing which permits licensees
to operate aircraft related business worldwide. During the same period,
Miss Fan also found Great Dragon Petroleum Limited (“Great Dragon”)
which engages in oil related products trading business. She is responsible
for its corporate strategic planning and administration management.
Miss Fan had been with Nomura (Hong Kong) Limited as Senior
Consultant in China Affairs and now committee member of /&2 X £
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Mr CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie

aged 37, was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company on
2 October 2009, oversees the marketing function of Great Dragon,
mainly responsible for its distribution channel development and brand-
building work. Mr Cheung is an Executive Director of Thornton and
Partners and one of the co-founders. He also serves as an Executive
Director of Sau San Tong Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange. Prior to these, he was a
director of Thornton Global Strategies Limited, a corporate serving arm
of the Thornton Financial Services Group, and a director of E-credit and
Vicorp Credit Services Limited which serves as an external independent
databank operational unit for its banking institutions clients in Hong
Kong.

Throughout the years, Mr Cheung has architected a vast channel for
deal flow in the region. With his credit facilities background, active
involvement in numerous substantial corporate transactions and
advisory on various investments and debt-financing arrangements, Mr
Cheung gained his invaluable expertise in wealth and credit management
and relationship management. Mr Cheung holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration from Americus University, U.S.
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Mr WU King Cheong

aged 59, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director in
October 2002 and a member of the Audit Committee and chairman
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is an Executive
Director of Lee Cheong Gold Dealers Limited. He is also the Life
Honorary Chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
and Member of Hong Kong Housing Authority, as well as the Honorary
Permanent President of the Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
and the Permanent Honorary President of the Hong Kong Securities
Association Ltd. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Yau Lee Holdings Limited, Henderson Land Development Company
Limited, Henderson Investment Limited, Miramar Hotel and Investment
Co., Ltd. and Hong Kong Ferry (Holdings) Company Limited, all of
which are companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr LEUNG Kwong Kin J.P.

aged 64, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 1 April 2008. He is a senior practicing
director of Wong Lam Leung & Kwok C.P.A. Limited. He is a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Association
of International Accountants. Mr Leung is also an associate of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong, the member of the Macau Society of Certified
Practising Accountants, the Society of Chinese Accountants & Auditors,
the Chartered Management Institute and the International Institute
of Management. Mr Leung holds a Master of Business Administration
Degree from the University of East Asia, Macau (now known as “the
University of Macau”) and is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
E. Bon Holdings Limited which is listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr LAU Kai Shu, Frank

aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director,
member of the Audit Committee and member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company on 1 April 2008. He was Director and
General Manager, Alternate Chief Executive of Shanghai Commercial
Bank Limited until he retired in July 2004. He possesses extensive
knowledge and experience in the banking industry.
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Schedule of Properties
NEEH

Particulars of properties held by the Group are as follows: NEFB7EERWOT -
Approximate
gross Group’s
Location Usage floor area Lease term interest
RE E
bk J5iFeS BEER BYFH Frit s
sq. ft. ‘FAR %
Hong Kong
58

Unit 6, 8/F, Block C,

Ko Fai Industrial Building,

7 Ko Fai Road,

Yau Tong,

Kowloon Central kitchen 10,000 Medium 100
JLEE PREE A Hf

IR

=IEE AR

SETIEARE

CEEN\BRRE

Flats A & B on 15/F and

Carparking Space No. L4 on 1/F,

Amiata Industrial Building,

58-64 Lei Muk Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories Warehouse 7,842 Medium 100
R BE H Hj
B

ARERTNERTER

BEENE

THIZEAKBEK

—HEL4E L
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Revenue

The Group’s revenue rose by 69.2% from HK$318 million in 2009
to HK$538 million in 2010, which was mainly due to the Group’s
acquisition of the remaining 51% of the equity interest in Igor’s in March
2009 resulted the full consolidation of Igor’s full-year results into the
Group’s result for the fiscal year 2009/2010.

Gross profit

Gross profit margin of the Group increased from 74.1% last year to
78.7% this year. Such improvement was resulted from the contribution
of Igor’s which had a higher gross profit margin than other operations of
the Group for the year.

Other losses, net
decreased from HKS$141
HK$30.8 million this year. In 2010, the Group recorded impairment

Other losses, net million last year to
loss of HK$29.2 million on goodwill for the purchase of Igor’s while
HK$119 million impairment on goodwill for the purchases of Pacific
Coffee and Igor’s was made in 2009.

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs increased from HK$239 million in 2009
to HK$419 million this year, an increase of 75.3% or HK$180 million,
which was mainly attributable to the full consolidation of the selling and
distribution costs of Igor’s this year.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents decreased from HK$174 million as at 31
March 2009 to HK$112 million as at 31 March 2010 due mainly to the
settlement of consideration payable of HK$95.0 million for the step-up
acquisition of interest in Igor’s and the purchase of plant and equipment
of HK$30.5 million offsetting by the net cash from operating activities of
HK$78.4 million.

Creditors, deposits and accruals

Creditors, deposits and accruals decreased substantially mainly because
the consideration payable for the step-up acquisition of interest in Igor’s
was settled during the year.

Financial Review
B 7% o] EE

meaEwlEE

&
REBZHWFZH ST NF B38BT
EN69.2%%E —E—TFH)BHS3BET A
BAEREITEZEEARAEBR _ZZNF=A
Wk Igor' stk TE1%MAR ANz - F Bligor's &
FEEXEANAEEBE_ZTTH T —F
MHRFEFENEBENEE AR -

E7
AEBZEMNEHEFUINTERFE
78.7% c BREIE R II B RIgors R FE B A&
EERBREMEESNENEMEK -

HMEE  FEAEXFBEBLABTTHRER
FEBMI 0808 - RZT—TF - A5ER
B2 Algor'ssk 15 is 2 {8 &5 18 78 #2,9208 7t -
i = = = J1F 4 5t B APacific Coffeezlgor’s
EL B R EBEBLIYET -

HERELHRAE

HE DA AR - TN EMNBE2.39E T
I EARE B 4198 JT 0 1 I175.3%8k 75
#1.8018 7T - B B1E K Ty = Z Elgor’s KA F
RO SHE R HK AN 25 4R A AIRFTEL ©

mEaMBRRE

HERBREEEY
RBekREEBEWEARZZEZTNF=A
=+t HZBBILMABELT TRER_-_Z—ZF
—A=t—BZ2#EBLRET  TEBEaNSH
2 BE1gor’s 2 #E = A FE (< R (B 78 59,5008 7T -
ARIEABEKI0E TN ERBEREE
X ZIRE FREAB 78408 TTATHEH -

EARR - FAREREARER

ERIRR  FARSMAERER KB TK -
TE2AR/MILBIgorsz A ENREER
FAXNAE -

—Z—ZTEEH  Annual Report 2010 19



Financial Review
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SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND FINANCIAL RATIOS

As at 31 March 2010, the Group’s net assets attributable to equity holders
of the Company amounted to HK$403 million (2009: HK$405 million),
a decrease of HK$2.0 million or 0.5% when compared with 2009. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the issue of shares of HK$23.0 million
for the year offsetting by payments of final dividend for last year and
interim dividend for this year totalling HK$4.3 million during the
year and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of
HKS$22.1 million.

Total debt to equity ratio was 4.1% (2009: 7.0%) and net debt to equity
ratio was nil (2009: nil), which are expressed as a percentage of total
borrowings and net borrowings respectively, over the total equity of
HK$403 million (2009: HK$405 million).

BORROWINGS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s bank borrowings, all at
floating interest rate, amounted to HK$16.5 million (2009: HK$28.3 million).
Cash and bank deposits amounted to HK$112 million (2009: HK$174
million) and there were no net borrowings for both years.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$0.2 million (2009: HK$0.5
million), a decrease of HK$0.3 million as compared with 2009.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, there was no charge on assets. As at 31
March 2009, bank borrowings of HK$1.8 million were secured by charges
on property, plant and equipment of HK$2.2 million and prepaid lease
payments of HK$1.6 million.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Details of the contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2010 are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Details of the capital commitment as at 31 March 2010 are set out in note
36 to the consolidated financial statements.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts conservative treasury policies in cash and financial
management. To achieve better risk control and minimise cost of
funds, the Group’s treasury activities are centralised. Cash is generally
placed in short-term deposits mostly denominated in Hong Kong or US
dollar. The Group’s liquidity and financing requirements are frequently
reviewed. In anticipating new investments or maturity of bank loans,
the Group will consider new financing while maintaining an appropriate
level of gearing.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERHEE

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with the increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfil its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

The Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) came into effect on 1 January
2005. The CG Code sets out two levels of corporate governance practices
namely, mandatory code provisions that a listed company must comply
with or explain its non-compliance, and recommended best practices
that a listed company is encouraged to comply with but need not disclose
in the case of non-compliance. The Company is in compliance with the
mandatory code provisions of the CG Code except for the following non-
compliance:

All the Independent Non-Executive Directors are not appointed for a
specific term.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership
for the Company. The directors, individually and collectively, must act
in good faith in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies, monitors
and evaluates its operating and financial performance and reviews the
corporate governance standard of the Company. It also decides on
matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions, director
appointments or re-appointment, and dividend and accounting policies.
Management profile of the Company as at the date of this report are set
out on pages 14 to 17.

The Board comprises seven Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors. The full Board met six times during the year
under review. The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the
Board Committees Meetings is set out in the table below:
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Corporate Governance Report
LrEELREEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Meetings Attended/Held
BRHE BIRHY

Directors

BE=x

Audit Remuneration

Board Committee Committee

BEER ENEES YFHESE

Executive Directors

HITEF

Dr Chow Yei Ching (Chairman)
BEE L (FE)

Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director)
FMEIE S A (EFAALEE)

Mr Kuok Hoi Sang

BEELE

Miss Lily Chow

J&E) 0 i /)N 4

Mr Chang Wan Lung, Robert

REEXLE

Miss Fan Amy Lizhen (appointed on 2 October 2009)
RERNEBR-_FFENFF+HA_HEZL)
Mr Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie (appointed on 2 October 2009)
REBEE(R-_FEANFLA-_HEZE)
Mr Ho Sai Hou (resigned on 16 September 2009)
WESREE(R-_FFEANFAA+NHET)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTEF

Mr Wu King Cheong

B XL

Mr Leung Kwong Kin

Ryt

Mr Lau Kai Shu, Frank

BB EE

Mr Shinichi Yonehara (resigned on 1 April 2010)
KRE-RER-_F-FFHH—HEFE)

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
relationships with each other save for that Dr Chow is the father of Mr
Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar and Miss Lily Chow.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from
the three Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their Independence
and concluded that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Since the Board is involved in the appointment of new Directors, the
Company has not established a Nomination Committee. The Board will
take into consideration criteria such as expertise, experience, integrity
and commitment when considering new director appointments. All
candidates must also meet the standards as set forth in Rules 3.08 and
3.09 of the Listing Rules. A candidate who is to be appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director should also meet the independence

criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws of the Company, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company. New Directors appointed by the Board during
the year are required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at
the annual general meeting or general meeting immediately following
their appointments. Further, at each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors, or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third are required to retire from
office by rotation and no later than the third annual general meeting

since the last re-election or appointment of such Director.

Appointment of two Executive Directors were considered and confirmed
by full Board on 15 September 2009.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The CG Code provision stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same person. The Chairman of the Company is Dr Chow Yei Ching and
the Managing Director is Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar. The role of the
Chairman is separate from that of the Managing Director. The Chairman
is responsible for overseeing the functioning of the Board while the

Managing Director is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 1998 with written terms of
reference. Mr Leung Kwong Kin, Independent Non-Executive Director, is
the Chairman of the committee. He has extensive experience in financial
reporting and controls. Other members include all other Independent
Non-Executive Directors, namely, Mr Wu King Cheong, Mr Lau Kai Shu,
Frank and Mr Shinichi Yonehara (who has resigned on 1 April 2010).
The Audit Committee is responsible for the appointment of external
auditors, review of the Group’s financial information and oversight of the
Group’s financial reporting system, internal control procedures and risk
management frameworks. It is also responsible for reviewing the interim
and final results of the Group prior to recommending them to the Board
for approval. Its terms of reference are accessible on the Company’s
website, http://www.chevalier.com.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)
The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 March

2010. At the meetings, it reviewed the connected transactions (if any),
the interim results for the six months ended 30 September 2009 and last
year’s final results for the year ended 31 March 2009, and has reviewed
with the management the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and discussed the auditing, internal controls, financial
reporting matters and risk management systems of the Group. The final
results for the year ended 31 March 2010 were reviewed by the Audit
Committee in its meeting held on 2 June 2010. The Audit Committee
of the Company regularly discusses with the management the system of

internal control to ensure an effective internal control system.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 10 March 2005 with
written terms of reference. Mr Wu King Cheong is the Chairman of
the committee. Other members of the committee include Messrs Leung
Kwong Kin, Lau Kai Shu, Frank, Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Chang Wan
Lung, Robert and Shinichi Yonehara (who has resigned on 1 April
2010). The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing and
determining the compensation and benefits of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. Its terms of reference are accessible on the

Company’s website, http://www.chevalier.com.

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting during the year ended 31
March 2010 to review the remuneration packages paid to Directors and
senior management for the year ended 31 March 2010.

MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily operations
of the Group’s business to an Executive Committee which was
established in 1989. Members of the Executive Committee comprise five
Executive Directors, namely Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Chow Vee Tsung,
Oscar, Mr Kuok Hoi Sang, Miss Lily Chow and Mr Chang Wan Lung,
Robert.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibilities for maintaining sound and
effective internal controls in the Group. During the year, the Board
has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the Group’s system of
internal control, covering financial, operational, compliance control
and risk management functions. The Group’s system of internal control
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority, and is
designed to help the Group achieve its business objectives, safeguard its
assets against unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance
of proper accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for publication, and ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate all risks of failure in the
Group’s operational systems and in the achievement of the Group’s

business objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring the
internal controls of the Group and reports directly to the Chairman.
It has unrestricted access to review all aspects of the Group’s activities
and internal controls. It also conducts special audits of areas of concern
identified by Management or the Audit Committee. The Internal
Audit Department adopts a risk-based audit approach. All audit
reports are circulated to the Audit Committee and key management.
The Internal Audit Department is also responsible for following up
the implementation of recommendations and corrective actions. The
Audit Committee has free and direct access to the Head of Internal
Audit Department without reference to the Chairman of the Board or

management.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities in preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2010

on a going concern basis.

The Auditor of the

responsibilities in the auditor’s report on the consolidated financial

Company acknowledges their reporting
statements for the year ended 31 March 2010 as set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on page 37 to 38.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the financial year ended 31 March 2010, the fees paid/payable to

the auditors in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the

auditors to the Group were as follows:

Nature of services

BB 2 &=

BE-_ZT - ZFE=-A=Z+—-—HLVBRFE
N A EEREERE 2 ZBR E IR
BRBEXN BN ZBEAMEWT

Amount (HK$’000)

Rk 7% 1 & SHE(BETR)
Audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers 1% E IR 5 - B ERKESTEISEER 1,128
— other auditors - H b & 5T AD 84
Non-audit services — PricewaterhouseCoopers  FF 4% 21 ARk 1% -FERKBETEIESER 39
— other auditors — H fh & 5T A 177

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuer (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Following a specific enquiry, each of the Directors confirmed
that he/she has complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

To enhance the community relations, the Group has participated in
different charitable and voluntary organizations in various community
activities and taken care for the environment. During the year and up to
the date of this report, Pacific Coffee aligns with the corporate philosophy
of Chevalier Group to demonstrate its care to the community and the
environment. From a product perspective, Pacific Coffee has introduced
to its customers with “Crema Scura”, an organic certified coffee beans
grown in harmony with natural ecology as well as being fair-trade certified
beans which can relieve farm workers from poverty in fair trade without
exploitation. Pacific Coffee also supported various charity programs and
environmental initiatives such as selling nisBear at all coffeehouses to raise
fund for abandoned animals, the World Wildlife Fund’s “Earth Hour”
and Friends of the Earth (HK)’s “Dim it 6.21”, to create a sustainable low
carbon for our planet. Moreover, Pacific Coffee offered the support to the
local art scene by partnering with art-at-all, a local art organization, to host
the “Mapping the City” art exhibition at eight selected coffechouses where
part of the proceeds contributes back to the development of local artists.
In addition, Igor’s donated to the Children’s Surgical Centre in Cambodia
and the Community Chest of Hong Kong through the campaign of one

dollar charity surcharge per visit to help more people in need.
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group’s senior management maintains close communications with
investors, analysts, fund managers and the media by various channels
including individual interviews and meetings. The Group also responds

promptly to request for information and queries from the investors.

The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on matters affecting
the Group and encourages them to attend shareholders’ meetings
to communicate any concerns they might have with the Board or

Management directly.

The Company provides extensive information of the Group timely to
the shareholders and the public through the publication of interim and
annual reports, circulars, notices and announcements. The financial and
other information relating to the Group is disclosed on the Company’s

website at http://www.chevalier.com.

Corporate Governance Report
rEELRHELSE

RREERBRRZBRE
AEBZERERAREBSHLHA D
BRFEEEHERESE HWE  ELE
BRESRBENZER -AEETHRE
% REVE KL 2 TR R R 6 L B (0] 4 -

EZg ARG EAEENETHRED
ER YHBOMAEERRRNE #ZFAEE
WHESFSHEEBRRMMBEIINHEE -

ARBEBTNEFHARFERE B
BERABERNBRBERBRREARAL
RtzENEEER MABAKSEN
MEHREREMER TER AR B H U

http://www.chevalier.comA] ©

—FE—FEER  Annual Report 2010 27



Report of the Directors
EFEHEZ

The Directors present to shareholders their annual report together with
the audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries and associates are
shown on note 42 and note 18 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

The Group’s revenue and results for the year ended 31 March 2010
analysed by reportable segments are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2010 are set out in
the consolidated income statement on page 40. An interim dividend of
HKO.1 cent per share was paid on Friday, 15 January 2010. The Directors
now recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKO0.5 cent per
share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
6 September 2010 to Thursday, 9 September 2010, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for
the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Branch
Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited of 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not
later than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 3 September 2010.

SHARE CAPITAL
Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out
in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2010, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to

shareholders amounted to HK$25.8 million (2009: HK$17.2 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the
year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BORROWINGS
Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2010 are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
A financial summary and a financial review of the Group are shown on
pages 2 to 3 and on pages 19 to 20 respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest suppliers accounted for 30.1% of the Group’s purchases
for the year whereas the five largest customers was less than 30% of the
Group’s revenue for the year. The largest supplier accounted for 8.6%
of the Group’s purchases and the largest customer was less than 30%
of the Group’s revenue. None of the Directors, their associates nor any
shareholder (whom to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group’s
five largest suppliers or five largest customers.

INFORMATION OF PROPERTIES
Information of properties of the Group as at 31 March 2010 is set out on
page 18.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

The Group employed 1,150 full-time staff under its subsidiaries globally
as at 31 March 2010. Total staff costs amounted to HK$157 million for
the year ended 31 March 2010. The remuneration policies of the Group
are reviewed periodically on the basis of the nature of job, market trend,
company performance and individual performance. Other staff benefits
include bonuses awarded on a discretionary basis, medical schemes,
retirement schemes and employees’ share option scheme.

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made donations of HK$46,000 to charitable
bodies.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restriction against such rights under the laws
in Bermuda where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of listed securities of the
Company by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year.
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Report of the Directors
BEFEHEE

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Dr CHOW Yei Ching (Chairman)

Mr CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar (Managing Director)
Mr KUOK Hoi Sang

Miss Lily CHOW

Mr CHANG Wan Lung, Robert
Miss FAN Amy Lizhen

Mr CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie
Mr HO Sai Hou

(appointed on 2 October 2009)
(appointed on 2 October 2009)
(resigned on 16 September 2009)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr WU King Cheong

Mr LEUNG Kwong Kin
Mr LAU Kai Shu, Frank
Mr Shinichi YONEHARA (resigned on 1 April 2010)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Miss FAN Amy Lizhen,
Mr CHEUNG Ka Heng, Frankie, Miss Lily CHOW and Mr CHANG
Wan Lung, Robert shall retire from office at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. The
Independent Non-Executive Directors are subject to the same retirement
requirements as the Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director had a material interest subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, none of the Directors have an interest in any business
constituting a competing business to the Group.

30 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited £ +3Z 25 #% j& 45 fR 2 7)

=)
FEARBEAREERHEICAEFESD
™~
BITES

BrwE:T (£E)

F#ELRE (FEFHLHE)

FEERE

ﬂﬁﬁJm

REELE
BBENE (R-ZFEENFTHAZHEZE)
krExE (RZFZENFTA-HEZF)
MtsEE (RZFEENFAFAFNHEL)
BYFBITES

TR S &
Rk
FBEEE
KEE— Sk (RZFE—FFHA—HEFEF)
BIBARR A BEBE/NE - REEL
- ﬂﬂﬂJm&% BELERIEERZ

fEEREFARE L&
NIERTEEZE E‘&E

MEFEE R BT - BB
HEHNTESER -

EEREHARNzES

ARSI B P EMI R AR AR
AR ELEOEN- P EACESES ] -k

BEITEAESRBEARBEZEL ¢

EENHmBEERR 2 ER
FREN - BEEERAEERETERET
2 E MR AE AR -



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the share, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations,
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFO”), which have been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
taken under such provisions of the SFO), or which were required to be
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a)

Interests in the Company — Shares
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Number of ordinary shares

s 7B B AR SRR IR IR
BATHFEZER
SFRIZE A=

ZTERROEE
Approximate
Personal Corporate percentage
Name of Directors Capacity interests interests Total of interest
E=EB &% 5PN AT R wme BN
%
CHOW Yei Ching Interest of controlled - 1,285,829,330 1,285,829,330 57.01
corporation
) 7 48D 32 i NI X
KUOK Hoi Sang Beneficial owner 24,000,000 - 24,000,000 1.06
2684 EnmEE A
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar Beneficial owner 174,120,000 - 174,120,000 7.72
J& #E 1E EmEE A
Shinichi YONEHARA Beneficial owner 6,000 - 6,000 0.00027
KIRE— EmEE A
* Dr CHOW Yei Ching has notified the Company that under the * BIIEE+TEZEAFSHE L £

SFO, he was deemed to be interested in 1,285,829,330 shares of
the Company which were held by CIHL as Dr Chow beneficially
owned 154,682,359 shares in CIHL, representing approximately
55.73% of the issued share capital of CIHL. Dr Chow was deemed
to be interested in these shares under the SFO and these shares
were same as those shares disclosed in the section “Substantial
Shareholders’ Interests in Securities” below.
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Report of the Directors
BEFEHEE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

(b) Interests in Associated Corporation — Shares

EERFETRABZESERH)
(b) HEATEZR - KRH

Number of ordinary shares

ZERKROEE

Approximate

Personal percentage

Name of Directors Associated corporation Capacity interests Total of interest

ExEl HE D H g7} & AR & ny RN

%

CHOW Yei Ching CIHL Beneficial owner 154,682,359 154,682,359 55.73
J& 7 5D HLTBERK BEHEBA

KUOK Hoi Sang CIHL Beneficial owner 98,216 98,216 0.04
HEE H A B BEnEBA

Shinichi YONEHARA CIHL Beneficial owner 1,671 1,671 0.001
KERE— HLER EmEA A

Save as disclosed above and in “Share Option Schemes” below, as at 31
March 2010, so far as is known to the Directors and the chief executives
of the Company, no other person has interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which are required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he is taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions of the SFO); or are required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein, or are
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A share option scheme of the Company (the “CPHL Scheme”) was
approved by the shareholders of CIHL and shareholders of the Company
on 20 September 2002. Another share option scheme of CIHL (the
“CIHL Scheme”) was also approved by the shareholders of CIHL on 20
September 2002. The CPHL Scheme and the CIHL Scheme fully comply
with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. During the year, no share option
was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the CPHL Scheme and
the CIHL Scheme. There was no outstanding option under the CPHL
Scheme and the CIHL Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the
year.

Particulars of the CPHL Scheme are set out in note 38(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director offering for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Apart from the management agreement entered into with CIHL Group
as set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, no other
contract of significance concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was entered into or subsisted during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries were participating
companies in the Chevalier Group Staff Provident Fund Scheme (the
“ORSO Scheme”) as defined in the Occupational Retirement Schemes
Ordinance which is a defined contribution retirement scheme. The
ORSO Scheme was granted exemption from Mandatory Provident
Fund regulations by the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority
and shall not open to new members starting from 1 December 2000.
Certain of the Company’s overseas subsidiaries contribute to their local
government’s central pension plans for their employees.

Pursuant to Government legislation, Bank Consortium Trust Company
Limited was selected by the Group as Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) service provider for employees of the Group who
join the Group from 1 December 2000. The MPF Scheme is available to
the employees aged 18 to 65 and with at least 60 days of service under the
employment of the Group in Hong Kong. The benefits are required by
law to be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

The Group’s total contributions to these schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement during the year amounted to
HK$7,210,000.

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
BEFEHEE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2010, so far as is known to the Directors and the
chief executives of the Company, the interests and short positions
of the persons or corporations in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company which have been disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under S336 of the SFO

were as follows:

FERRzESES

RZEBE—ZTF=ZA=Z+—H RERAES
MEZTBRABMM  TH AL EERAK
REIRMDIEBEROTPERAREBEES K
B EIEPI EXVEE FE2 03D 5
BT METDHERAQRAREZSKBAEK
MEBEF 2R zERREE N
—|T :

B EY 166 3 A AR 2 )

Approximate

Number of percentage

Substantial shareholders Capacity shares held of interest

FERR 54 EROBE EEEY

%

CHOW Yei Ching Beneficial owner 1,285,829,330 57.01
J& 71 80 Em#EB A (Note 1) (FF7E1)

MIYAKAWA Michiko Beneficial owner 1,285,829,330 57.01
BEIEEF EmdEE A (Note 2) (Fi5E2)

CIHL Beneficial owner 1,285,829,330 57.01

H 4 B BB A
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar Beneficial owner 174,120,000 7.72
J& #E TE EmEE A

CHAN Alanna Beneficial owner 174,120,000 7.72
bR 52 2= EmiEA A (Note 3) (Fif5E3)

CHEN Wai Wai, Vivien Beneficial owner 188,000,000 8.34
BREZ EnEE A (Note 4) (P 5E4)

Crosby Investment Holdings Inc. Interest of controlled corporation 188,000,000 8.34
TIEH RN B 2 S (Note 4) (B 5E4)

Nan Fung Resources Limited Interest of controlled corporation 188,000,000 8.34
e ERBR DA EEHARER (Note 4) (I 5E4)

Gentfull Investment Limited Beneficial owner 188,000,000 8.34

BEFHREARDA

84 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited

EDBEAA

HEtZoERARQA

(Note 4) (I 5E4)



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)
Notes:

1. Under the SFO, these shares were held by Dr Chow as corporate
interests in which Dr Chow was deemed to be interested.

2. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Miyakawa Michiko, the spouse of
Dr Chow, was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of those
shares held by Dr Chow.

3. Under Part XV of the SFO, Ms Chan Alanna, the spouse of
Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, was deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of those shares held by Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar.

4. Ms Chen Wai Wai, Vivien, Crosby Investment Holdings Inc., Nan
Fung Resources Limited are taken to be interested in 188,000,000
shares which were held by Gentfull Investment Limited. Gentfull
Investment Limited is wholly owned by Nan Fung Resources
Limited and in turn wholly owned by Crosby Investment Holdings
Inc. which is 100% owned by Ms Chen Wai Wai, Vivien.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2010, so far as is known to the
Directors and the chief executives of the Company, no other person
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, or,
were directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of the Company.

ARRANGEMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Except for the share option schemes adopted by the Company and its
associated corporations, at no time during the year was the Company
or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of
the Company or any other body corporate.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
BEFEHEE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with the code
provisions as set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 March 2010, with deviations
from code provision A.4.1 which has already been stated in the Corporate
Governance Report of the Annual Report.

The Board of the Company is committed to maintain high standards of
corporate governance. The Company has complied throughout the year
ended 31 March 2010 with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules with exception of deviation. Detailed information on the
Company’s corporate governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained on pages 21 to 27 of the Annual Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s
share which is in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s
total number of issued shares as at 2 June 2010, the latest practicable date
to ascertain such information prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Messrs
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHOW Yei Ching
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 June 2010
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Independent Auditor's Report

PRICEAVATERHOUSE( QOPERS

BYREMEEE

BEBKES SR

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHEVALIER PACIFIC HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chevalier Pacific
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 40 to 104, which comprise the consolidated
and Company statements of financial position as at 31 March 2010,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
BUBHMEEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks
of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation
of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2010
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 2 June 2010
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Index to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEEBBRRES
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Consolidated Income Statement

e W

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ=_ZF—FF=H=+—HIFE

2010 2009

—g-85 -TInE

Note HK$’000 HK$’000

B 5 BT T 7T T

Revenue g 2= 5 538,023 317,572
Cost of sales 35 & B AN (114,414) (82,176)

Gross profit £ F 423,609 235,396
Other income/(expenses), net H A () @ F58 6 9,189 (24,847)
Other losses, net Hungsta  F58 7 (30,848) (141,437)
Selling and distribution costs 3 E M AR EH B AN (418,956) (238,541)
Administrative expenses THZE (5,093) (3,956)
Operating loss KL 1 (22,099) (173,385)

Share of results of associates P B & A T E4E 18 221 11,229

e (21,878)  (162,156)

Finance income B S U A 8 81 1,247

Finance costs B E A 8 (219) (451)
_Finance (costs)/income,met ____ _______________ MBEB)MA FE#E 8 . (138) 796

Loss before taxation B %4 Al &5 18 9 (22,016) (161,360)

Income tax (expenses)/credit TR () /e 10 (76) 2,590
Loss for the year KEEEIR (22,092) (158,770)

Attributable to: FE{R R :

Equity holders of the Company KANRR#EZEE A 13 (22,092) (158,770)
Dividends ’E 11 13,432 4,311
Loss per share BREE

— Basic and diluted (HK cents per share) - EARREE(BRE) 12 (1.02) (7.37)

The notes on pages 47 to 104 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEENE R

For the year ended 31 March 2010 &EZE=—FT—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—®-%% -—TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Loss for the year REEE®E (22,092) (158,770)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,
net of tax
Exchange difference on translation of operations
of overseas subsidiaries

BREEZAFEHE2ZEWE (FR)

HEGINHBRRIERESE Y
HNEE W IR E KR 315 (701)

Change in fair value of an available-for-sale investment ~ AJfHE 2K EMN AR EE (1,573) (11,783)
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale investment EREZRANEROAIHEE 2
transferred to consolidated income statement KEWRERE 2,345 -
Fair value adjustments upon step-up acquisition HE—FHBE AR EREN
of interest in an associate N B E = 908
... 1087 (11,576)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AFEELHEIBARE (21,005) (170,346)
Attributable to: LR
Equity holders of the Company VN/NEIV LSS =F =N (21,005) (170,346)
Note: Mt aE -

Items shown within other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year have no tax effect.

The notes on pages 47 to 104 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
EE BN B R

Asat 31 March 2010 R=—E—FEFE=F=+—H

2010 2009
—2-2% -—TThF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T 7T T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - WEMRZE 14 81,347 83,386
Prepaid lease payments TE T H & RIE 15 6,632 6,790
Goodwill RS 17 112,135 136,853
Trademarks ESEE 17 110,448 118,337
Interest in an associate i —MEtE R e Ea 18 932 1,079
Available-for-sale investments At EZR/E 19 5,405 7,193
Non-current deposits FERETF Hie 22 23,457 24,461
Deferred tax assets RIER I E B 29 1,476 -
341,832 378,099
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 21 13,635 11,733
Debtors, deposits and JEWIRE - FHIEE &
prepayments TEf RIE 22 35,162 39,404
Amount due from an associate JE W — B & R B IR 3R 18 142 311
Investments at fair value through profit or loss REZREAABEREZEKE 20 327 22,824
Current income tax recoverable & BRI AT W B BT S R 372 -
Cash and cash equivalents HehReEEY 23 111,636 173,600
R 161274 247,872
Current liabilities REBEE
Creditors, deposits and JERIESR - FAKE R
accruals BIRER 24 52,451 162,398
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE A &% 4% #2 A B R K 25 595 230
Deferred income IR JE U A 9,129 5,796
Current income tax liabilities EHMERAE 1,527 2,661
Bank borrowings RITER 26 16,500 6,207
e 80,202 177,092
Net current assets REBEESE 81,072 70,580
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTRBAERE 422,904 448,679
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
LEBBMRRER

Asat 31 March 2010 R=—E—ZFE=F=+—H

2010 2009
—g-258 -—TIhf
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B & BT T BT T
Capital and reserves BARFEE
Share capital A% 2 27 112,770 107,770
Reserves R 28 290,577 297,692
Totalequity ] - S 403,347 405,462
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFBEEE 29 19,557 21,101
Bank borrowings RITER 26 - 22,116
... 19,557 .. 43,217
Total equity and non-current liabilities BEZNIERBEES 422,904 448,679

Approved by the Board of Directors on 2 June 2010 and signed on REZGN_ZT—ZTFXA-_BHE WHTI

its behalf by: EERREE
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar KUOK Hoi Sang
B #EE BwE

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 47 to 104 are integral parts of these consolidated financial FATR104BE 2 EE A ISR 2 48K 36
statements. {/\ °
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Company Statement of Financial Position
TR 3O

Asat 31 March 2010 R=—E—FEFE=F=+—H

2010 2009
—E-BF _—_FTZNF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BET T 7T T
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries KL NG P 16 414,995 425,284
Current assets REEE
Deposits and prepayments FiHiEe RIENFKIE 22 531 1,859
Amounts due from subsidiaries AN NGILE N 16 37,125 30,571
Cash and cash equivalents e hBREEEY 23 44,102 110,086
RN, 81,758 142,516
Current liabilities REBEE
Deposits and accruals FAKZSLTERER 24 1,329 96,260
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE S &% 4% 12 AR A &) R K 25 583 201
Amounts due to subsidiaries R ENGIL SN 16 - 8,369
e 912 (104,830
Net current assets REBEEFEE 79,846 37,686
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHAERS 494,841 462,970
Capital and reserves BRARF®E
Share capital fig A& 27 112,770 107,770
Reserves 1 28 382,071 355,200
Total equity R = 494,841 462,970

Approved by the Board of Directors on 2 June 2010 and signed on KEEGN_T-—TFA_BHE - WH T

its behalf by: EERREE
CHOW Vee Tsung, Oscar KUOK Hoi Sang
B #EE BEE

Director Director

EF EBEF

The notes on pages 47 to 104 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F7R104B 2T ES A B HRER Z A B
statements. 1/\ °
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ﬁAI“%ﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2010 BZ=—ZT—FTF=HA=1+—HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company
ARAREFEARNL

Share capital Reserves Total equity

@S =i R

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

B¥ TR B¥ETR B¥TR

At 1 April 2008 RZZZENFHEA—H 107,770 485,282 593,052
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXHBEERE - (170,346) (170,346)
Dividends paid BB - (17,244) (17,244)

At 31 March 2009 —ETNF=ZA=+—H 107,770 297,692 405,462
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAHBEES = (21,005) (21,005)
Dividends paid BT A = (4,311) (4,311)

Issue of shares BTG 5,000 18,000 23,000
Share issuance expenses BTN X = (661) (661)

Share option — consultancy services received B - EEHARE - 862 862

At 31 March 2010 R_T-TF=F=+—H 112,770 290,577 403,347

The notes on pages 47 to 104 are integral parts of these consolidated financial F47E1048 2 M T TH L F48 & B 15 3 2k 2 48 B
statements. 45 o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GEBHsREX

For the year ended 31 March 2010 HZ=_ZF—FF=H=+—HIFE

2010 2009
—E-2F _—_TIThF
Note HK$’000 HK$°000
M 5 B¥TR BETT
Operating activities REX
Cash generated from operations BEEEACHES 41 83,049 31,484
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEEMEB (4,629) (2,998)
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEAFGRRK 27 -
_Net cash from operating activities RECEXBZRERE 84T 28,486
Investing activities REEK
Interest received 2 WA 300 3,345
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEME BELEXE (30,505) (14,114)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BERREBEZ
plant and equipment Ffr 15 5018 623 1,487
Purchase of an available-for-sale investment BA—EAHEEZEE - (3,775)
Proceeds from disposal of an available-for-sale HE—BAHEEZKRED
investment P53 1A 215 -
Investments in associates g /N| - (21,479)
Net cash outflow from step-up acquisition HE—HBE AR
of interest in an associate IR &M F 30 = (4,316)
Adjustment arising from finalisation of purchase EE-EBE AR
consideration for step-up acquisition of interest EmmxRWEREZ
in an associate EEE= 661 -
Settlement of consideration payable for step-up AT ISE B AR 2
acquisition of interest in an associate EEEEMNKE 30 (95,047) -
Net cash outflow from acquisition I i — M B Az
of a subsidiary ReEmL F8E 31 (5,111) -
Dividend received from an associate Pl —fEBE R R 2 RE 368 -
Repayment from an associate B —REBE AR ZER 169 4,100
Net cash used in investing activities EARRARB2REFE (128,327) _ _ (34752)
Financing activities Al 8 K
Issue of shares BITRGD 27 23,000 -
Share issuance expenses BITRGH X W 28 (661) -
Interest paid 2AFE (219) (451)
Dividends paid EENE S (4,311) (17,244)
Dividend paid to ex-shareholder B —fEE AR 2
of an associate A A% B B9 AR 2 (18,199) -
Repayments of bank borrowings EERRITER (11,823) (2,000)
| Net cash used in financing activities _______________ RARBAXBZRSFER . (12213)  (19,695)
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReERESEEYHED (62,093) (25,961)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of theyear RENRERBREEEY 173,600 200,011
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates Exgsogg 129 (450)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year RERZEHERESZEEY 111,636 173,600

The notes on pages 47 to 104 are integral parts of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a public
listed company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability. The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM12,
Bermuda and 22nd Floor, Chevalier Commercial Centre, 8 Wang
Hoi Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong respectively. The Company’s
ultimate holding company is Chevalier International Holdings Limited
(“CIHL”), a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. Both
CIHL’s and the Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding while
the activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 30 March 2010, each of
the issued and unissued share of HK$0.50 each in the share capital of
the Company has been subdivided into ten shares of HK$0.05 each.

Following the share subdivision, the authorised share capital of the
Company of HK$175,000,000 has been divided into 3,500,000,000
shares of HK$0.05 each.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar, which is the same as the functional currency of the Company.
These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 2 June 2010.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, except as described
below.

On initial recognition, trademarks acquired separately and during
business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, trademarks with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation for trademarks with finite useful lives is
provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. During the year, the management
reassessed the useful life of the trademark of branded coffee shops
business by performing various studies. Based on the results, the
Directors considered that it is appropriate to adjust the useful life of
the trademark from indefinite as stated in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2009 to finite with a life of
15 years starting from this financial year. This change in accounting
estimate resulted in an amortisation of HK$7,200,000 charged for the
business to the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
March 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBEER T

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-
for-sale investments and investments at fair value through profit or

loss.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in

note 4.

(i)  New/revised standards, amendments to existing standards and
interpretation effective for the financial year beginning on 1

April 2009

The Group has adopted the following new/revised standards,
amendments to existing standards and interpretation that are
mandatory for the Group’s financial year beginning on 1 April
2009 and relevant to the Group’s operation. The impact on the

Group’s accounting policies upon adoption is set out below:

. HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial Statements”.
The revised standard prohibits the presentation of items
of income and expenses (that is “non-owner changes
in equity”) in the statement of changes in equity,
requiring “non-owner changes in equity” to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity in a statement of

comprehensive income.

As a result the Group presents in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity all owner changes in equity,
whereas all non-owner changes in equity are presented
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Comparative information has been re-presented so that it
also is in conformity with the revised standard. Since the
change in accounting policy only impacts presentation

aspects, there is no impact on loss per share.

0 HKEFRS 2 (Amendment), “Share-based Payment Vesting

Conditions and Cancellations”. The amendment clarifies
vesting conditions” and specifies
the accounting treatment of “cancellations” by the
counterparty to a share-based payment arrangement.
Vesting conditions are service conditions (which require
a counterparty to complete a specified period of service)
and performance conditions (which require a specified
period of service and specified performance targets to
be met) only. All “non-vesting conditions” and “vesting
conditions” that are market conditions shall be taken
into account when estimating the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. All cancellations are accounted for
as an acceleration of vesting and the amount that would
otherwise have been recognised over the remainder of the
vesting period is recognised immediately. The adoption of
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) has had no material impact on

«

the definition of

the consolidated financial statements.
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(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(i)

New/revised standards, amendments to existing standards and

interpretation effective for the financial year beginning on 1
April 2009 (continued)

HKFRS 7
Disclosures”. The amendment increases the disclosure

(Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
measurement and
risk. The

amendment introduces a three-level hierarchy for fair

requirements about fair value

amends the disclosure about liquidity

value measurement disclosures and requires some
specific quantitative disclosures for those instruments
classified in the lowest level in the hierarchy. These
disclosures will help to improve comparability between
entities about the effects of fair value measurement.
In addition, the amendment clarifies and enhances the
existing requirements for the disclosure of liquidity risk
primarily requiring a separate liquidity risk analysis for
derivative and non-derivative financial liabilities. It also
requires a maturity analysis for financial assets where
the information is needed to understand the nature
and content of liquidity risk. The Group has included
additional

financial statements.

relevant disclosures in the consolidated

HKERS 8, “Operating segments”. HKFRS 8 replaces HKAS
14, “Segment Reporting”. It requires a “management
approach” under which segment information is presented
on the same basis as that used for internal reporting
purposes to the chief operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been
identified as the Board of Directors.

The adoption of HKFRS 8 resulted in no change in the
identification of reportable segments presented in the
consolidated financial statements but has led to increased
disclosures. The 2009 comparative figures have also been
presented on the same basis.

HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 13, “Customer Loyalty
Programmes”. HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 13 clarifies
that where goods or services are sold together with a
customer loyalty incentive (for example, loyalty points
or free products), the arrangement is a multiple-element
arrangement and the consideration receivable from the
customer is allocated between the components of the
arrangement using fair values. The adoption of HKIFRIC
— Interpretation 13 has had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LREBHEE N

(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

New/revised standards and amendments to existing standards
that are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the
Group

The following new/revised standards and amendments to
existing standards relevant to the Group have been issued, but
are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April 2009
and the Group has not early adopted them:

(ii)

50
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HKFRS 2 (Amendment), “Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions” (effective for annual
period starting from 1 January 2010). In addition to
incorporating HK(IFRIC) — Interpretation 8, “Scope
of HKFRS 2” and HK(IFRIC) - Interpretation 11,
“HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions”,
the amendment expands on the guidance in HK(IFRIC)
— Interpretation 11 to address the classification of group
arrangements that were not covered by the interpretation.
The new guidance is not expected to have a material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 3 (Revised), “Business Combinations” (effective
for annual period starting from 1 July 2009). The revised
standard continues to apply the acquisition method to
business combinations, with some significant changes.
For example, all payments to purchase a business are
to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with
contingent payments classified as debt subsequently re-
measured through the consolidated income statement.
There is a choice on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
to measure the minority interest in the acquiree either
at fair value or at the minority interest’s proportionate
share of the acquiree’s net assets. All acquisition-related
costs should be expensed. The Group will apply HKFRS 3
(Revised) prospectively to all business combinations from
1 April 2010.

HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments” (effective for annual
period starting from 1 January 2013). HKFRS 9 improves
and simplifies the approach for
measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39. The approach in HKFRS 9 is
based on how an entity manages its financial instruments

(its business model) and the contractual cash flow

classification and

characteristics of the financial assets. The Group will apply
HKEFRS 9 from 1 April 2013.
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(a)

(b)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (continued)

(ii) New/revised standards and amendments to existing standards
that are not yet effective and have not been adopted by the
Group (continued)

. HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements” (effective for annual period starting from
1 July 2009). The revised standard requires the effects
of all transactions with minority interest to be recorded
in equity if there is no change in control and these
transactions will no longer result in goodwill or gains and
losses. The standard also specifies the accounting when
control is lost. Any remaining interest in the entity is re-
measured to fair value, and a gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss. The Group will apply HKAS 27 (Revised)
prospectively to transactions with minority interest from 1
April 2010.

In addition, HKICPA has published a number of amendments to
existing standards under its annual improvements project. These
amendments are expected to have no material impact to the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of more than one
half of the voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting
rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the
acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost of an acquisition is
measured at the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued
and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs
directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date,
irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the identifiable net assets of
the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B HIRE N

(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When a business combination involves more than one exchange
transaction, the fair values of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities may be different at the date of each
exchange transaction. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities must then be recognised by the acquirer at their
fair values at the acquisition date, any adjustment to those fair values
relating to previously held interests of the acquirer is a revaluation and
shall be accounted for as such.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s
accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation. All unrealised gains/losses are eliminated.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or an associate,
representing the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant subsidiary or associate at the date
of acquisition, is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary is presented
separately in the consolidated statements of financial position.
Goodwill arising on an acquisition of an associate is included in the
cost of the investment of the relevant associate.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested for impairment annually or
more frequently if there is indication that goodwill might be impaired.
Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in investments
in respective associates and is tested for impairment as part of the
overall balance. For the purposes of impairment testing, separately
recognised goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of
the relevant cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before the
end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the CGU
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is
allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the income statement. An
impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of subsidiary or associate, the attributable
amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill/discount on acquisitions (continued)

A discount on acquisition arising on an acquisition of a subsidiary or
an associate represents the excess of the net fair value of an acquiree’s
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of the business combination and is recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement.

Contingent liabilities of an acquiree are recognised at the date of
the acquisition if the fair value of the contingent liabilities can be
measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are initially measured at fair
value at the date of acquisition.

Interest in an associate

The results and assets and liabilities of associate are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, investment in an associate are
carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as
adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and of changes in equity of the associate, less any identified
impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the
investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in the consolidated
income statement.

Where a Group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in the relevant associate, except to the extent that unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in
which case, the full amount of losses is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investment in an
associate is stated at cost less provision for impairment loss. The result
of associate is accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statements
of financial position when a Group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA EE N

(e)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and/or receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged or cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and/or payable is recognised
in the income statement.

(i)

o4

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
available-for-sale investments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
category of financial assets are set out below:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are those
financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition. At the end of each reporting period
subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are remeasured at fair value, with changes
in fair value recognised directly in the income statement in the
period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including debtors, amount
due from an associate and cash and cash equivalents) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses. An impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement when there is objective evidence that the
asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate. Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount of
the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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(e)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

(i)  Financial assets (continued)
Available-for-sale investments
Available-for-sale investments are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as any of the other categories set
out above. At the end of each reporting period subsequent to
initial recognition, available-for-sale investments are measured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in equity,
until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised
in the income statement. Any impairment losses on available-
for-sale investments are recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through the income statement in subsequent
periods. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of
the investment can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the recognition of the impairment losses.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are stated at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period subsequent to initial recognition. An impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate
of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses
will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

(ii)  Financial liabilities and equity
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a Group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other
financial liabilities. The accounting policies adopted in respect of
financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial
liabilities held for trading on initial recognition. At the end of
each reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are remeasured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised directly in the income
statement in the period in which they arise.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings, creditors,
amount due to ultimate holding company are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B HIRE N

®

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

(i)  Buildings
Buildings held for own use are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is provided
on the cost of the buildings on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 20 to 50 years or the remaining terms of
the respective leases, whichever is the shorter after considering
the estimated residual value.

(ii)  Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation is provided to
write off the cost of plant and equipment over their estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis after taking into account their
estimated residual value at the following rates per annum:

Annual charge

Over the lease term
331/3%

Leasehold improvement

Store machine and equipment 10%-—

Furniture, fixtures, office
equipment and motor vehicles

10%-30%
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising from disposal or retirement of an asset is
determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income
statement.

Prepaid lease payments

Prepaid lease payments represent upfront premiums paid for land cost.
Prepaid lease payments are charged to income statement over the term
of relevant land leases on a straight-line basis.

Trademarks

On initial recognition, trademarks acquired separately and during
business combinations are recognised at cost and at fair value
respectively. After initial recognition, trademarks with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation for trademarks with finite useful lives is provided
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 15 years.
Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. There is a change in accounting
estimate of useful live of trademark of branded coffee shops from
indefinite to finite with a life of 15 years. Details are set out in note 2.

The gain or loss arising from derecognition of a trademark is measured
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement when
the asset is derecognised.

Trademarks are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
there is indication that the assets might be impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is calculated using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value is
determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds in the ordinary
course of business less applicable selling expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown as a separate current liability in the statement of
financial position.

Pledged bank deposits are not included in cash and cash equivalents.

Revenue recognition

Income from sale of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and
title to the goods has passed to the customers. Revenue is arrived at
after deduction of any sales returns, discount and value-added tax.

Income from rendering of services is recognised at the time when
services are rendered. Receipts in advance of provision of services are
accounted for as deferred income.

Franchise income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
contract period. Receipts in advance of franchise income is accounted
for as deferred income.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, with
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to its net
carrying amount.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the respective leases.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs
are charged to the income statement in the period in which they are
incurred.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rental payables under operating leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Benefits received and receivables as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight-line basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B HIRE N

(n)

(p)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at
fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in the income
statement in the period in which they arise, except for exchange
differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of the Group’s
net investment in a foreign operation, which are recognised in equity
in the consolidated financial statements. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in the income statement for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the
exchange components of that gain or loss are also recognised directly
in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates
of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised as a separate component of equity, the exchange fluctuation
reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired
arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on or after 1 April
2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation and
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange differences so arising are recognised in the exchange
fluctuation reserve.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans including
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong Kong are charged as
an expense as they fall due, net of forfeited contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Taxation
Income tax expenses represent the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes income statement
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and interests in associates except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Deferred
tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Impairment

Assets that have indefinite useful lives or have not yet been available
for use are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units “CGU”). Assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LEBHEEN

(s)

(t)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise
lease termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to
passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or the
amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the note
to the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will
then be recognised as a provision.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Board
of Directors. The Board of Directors are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of operating segments.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation
plan, under which the Group receives services from consultants in
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The
fair value of the services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market service and performance
vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total amount expensed is recognised over the vesting period, that
is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to
be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the entity revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of
the revision of original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs

are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when
the options are exercised.
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3.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss, debtors,
amount due from an associate, creditors, amount due to ultimate
holding company, cash and cash equivalents and bank borrowings.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes
to the consolidated financial statements. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies adopted to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk

The bank deposits and bank borrowings are exposed to
fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk.
The floating-rate bank borrowings and short-term bank
deposits are exposed to cash flow interest rate risk. The
management monitors interest rate exposure and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

If interest rates had been increased/decreased by one
percentage point and all other variables were held
constant, the post-tax loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2010 would be decreased/increased by
approximately HK$325,000 (2009: HK$306,000) resulting
from the changes in the interest income from bank
deposits and borrowing costs of bank borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the Group
entity’s functional currency. The Group has certain
investments in foreign operations, of which net assets/
liabilities are exposed to foreign currency translation risk.
Currency exposure arising from the net assets/liabilities
of the Group’s foreign operations is managed primarily
through borrowings denominated in the relevant foreign
currencies.

Major financial instruments under foreign currencies
(other than the functional currencies of the Group
entities) that are exposed to foreign exchange risk are
denominated in the United States dollar (“US dollar”), to
which Hong Kong dollar is pegged.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its investments in equity securities classified as either
available-for-sale investments or investments at fair value
through profit or loss. Management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. In addition, management has appointed a special
team to monitor the price risk and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LEBHEEN

3.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

62

Credit risk
Principal financial assets consist of available-for-sale
investments, investments at fair value through profit or loss,
debtors, amount due from an associate, and cash and cash
equivalents.

Under the ongoing financial crisis, debtors of the Group may
be affected by the unfavourable economic conditions and the
lower liquidity situation which could in turn impact their ability
to repay the amounts owed. Deteriorating operating conditions
for debtors may also have an impact on management’s cash flow
forecasts and assessment of the impairment of receivables. To the
extent that information is available, management has properly
reflected revised estimates of expected future cash flows in their
impairment assessments.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties’ failure to perform their obligations at the end
of the reporting period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

Amount due from an associate is continuously monitored
by assessing the credit quality of the counterparty, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Where necessary, impairment loss is made for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. As at 31 March 2010, the amount due
from an associate is fully performing.

Investments, interests receivable and cash transactions are
limited to financial institutions or investment counterparties
with high credit quality and the Group does not expect any
significant counterparty risk. Moreover, credit limits are set for
individual counterparties and periodic reviews are conducted to
ensure that the limits are strictly followed.

The Group does not have a significant exposure to any individual
debtor or counterparty.

Liquidity risk

The Group aims to maintain prudent liquidity risk management
and flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash equivalents,
readily realisable marketable securities and to have committed
short-term and medium-term credit lines available.

The Directors of the Company believe that the Group has
obtained sufficient committed and uncommitted general credit
facilities from banks for working capital purposes.

The Group’s liquidity position and compliance with loan
covenants are monitored closely by the management of the
Company.
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3.1

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1

(c)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of each reporting period to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

HEMBHER T

BHEREEEERBE®

Bt 7 R B B & ()
(c) BEZHEMEE(E

INTERBDAMARER B RELRE
BEREHRECHINHBH T HER
BERARNHRETHE - A TRBHATRK
HARCEHNARFRAESRE - ARITR
FEBIWTNEKN  FLALRBA AR
EREENEIRE AL o

significant.
The Group &
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
ATERE
PR—F —EWMF —ERfF BRAE MEAE
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT EB¥Tn BT EB¥Trn BETT
At 31 March 2010 R-E-ZEH5=F=+-H
Trade and other creditors B NHMEMER 19,346 = = = 19,346
Amount due to ultimate JE N R 183 IR A )
holding company [ 595 - - = 595
Bank borrowings and interest 3 17 f& F & | &
payments NES 16,517 - - - 16,517
The Group &
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
AFBRRE
PR—F —EME ZERF HiBhE MEBE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
At 31 March 2009 RZZZAF=A=+—H
Trade and other creditors B NEMEMIER 131,591 - - - 131,591
Amount due to ultimate BN &R
holding company NEILE 230 - - _ 230
Bank borrowings and interest 5% 17 {& X &
payments B3 6,721 20,962 872 557 29,112

—Z—ZTHF4H  Annual Report 2010 03



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B &M T

3.1

3.2

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 3 BERREEEEREE®
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 H%EMEZES®)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) BZnBEEE)
The Company P /N
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
AFRRE
DPR—F —EWE —ERF HERF REAHE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT E¥Tr BT E¥Tn
At 31 March 2010 R-E-ZEHE=F=+-H
Other creditors HipEMRED 346 - _ _ 346
Amount due to ultimate JE S R AR RN E]
holding company N 583 - - - 583
The Company b/ /NI |
Total
Less than 1-2 2-5 More than  undiscounted
1 year years years 5 years cash flows
ABREE
PR—F —EmME “ERF HBBRhE mE R
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
AETT BETr  B%TRr BB Tr  BETR
At 31 March 2009 RZZEZEAF=ZA=+—H
Other creditors HibERIER 95,333 - - - 95,333
Amount due to ultimate JEN SRR A A
holding company s =X 201 - - - 201
Amounts due to ERAWEB AT
subsidiaries R 3 8,369 - - - 8,369
Capital risk management 32 BEXEBRER
The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the AREEBEBEAZENARERAEFBEEL

Group’s ability to continue as a going concern while maximising the
returns for shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group regularly and closely reviews and manages its capital
structure to provide cost efficient funding to the Group and its
companies and make adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes of economic conditions or corporate needs.

The capital structure of the Group consists of total equity and bank
borrowings.

The Group was in net cash position as at 31 March 2010 and 2009
taking into account bank borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

HEMBHER T

Hl

ERREEEERBE®

Fair value estimation 33 QA REME
The Group uses the following hierarchies for determining and AEBEATIRNEELRKEMBIAZ
disclosing the fair values of financial instruments: ARE :
Level 1:  fair values measured based on quoted prices (unadjusted) BAl—: AREDHRBERMSZFEREE
in active markets for identical assets ZHRB(RALAR )=
Level 2: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for Bl — ANABENBEREHE ARALE
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the BEAESAYEMN W AEB AEERK
recorded fair value are observable, either directly or BEBRZHEELLA:T=
indirectly
Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques for WA= RAREBEDREBEAEHSEAKRALE
which all inputs which have a significant effect on the BEESRTENH AHEWNUIEER
recorded fair value are not based on observable market RABEMSEE(TEERE A
data (unobservable inputs) HEB)ZBEFEAFE
Assets measured at fair value as at 31 March 2010: R-_E—ZEF=ZA=+—BEAAEFEZ
BE
The Group
RE
Level 2 Level 3
&A= &A=
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Available-for-sale investments aJ
— Investment in a venture capital fund, - KA E S8
at fair value % = = 5,405
Investments at fair value through profit or loss RiE&HE BREZEE 327 -
327 5,405

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the

year ended 31 March 2010:

T%ijﬂg%:i@fgizﬂ =t+t—BLEFEZ

The Group
AEE
Equities Venture capital Total
R 17 1 ARES B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥TT B¥ T BETT
At 1 April 2009 R_ZEZNFMHA—A 215 6,978 7,193
Proceeds from disposal & TS 3R (215) = (215)
Fair value loss recognised in RER A Wz & ER
consolidated income statement AREEE - (1,573) (1,573)
At 31 March 2010 R-_ZE-—ZFF=H - 5,405 5,405
Total loss for the year included MERIFTEZEE:
in consolidated income statement 4R & Wz &k 2 A
for assets held at the end wEE - FHE
of the year, net - 2,345 2,345
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BRSTETTRAE
JUDGEMENTS \ _ o
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based &t & %'J il=g s ﬁ“é“ i N AR T)§ i@ 1 ,Zi_f fa K E A
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations Z ETREERAHABRATHERGEMN
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the I RIRE 2 TRR - B FE A o

circumstances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LEBHEEN

(b)

(d)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
]UDGEMENTS (continued)

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill and trademarks

Impairment losses of nil (2009: HK$49,750,000), HK$29,174,000
(2009: HK$68,950,000) and nil were recorded in relation to the
goodwill allocated to the Group’s branded coffee shops business,
restaurants and bars businesses, and natural resources business
respectively. No impairment losses were recorded in relation to
trademarks.

If the gross profit margin used in the post-tax cash flow projections
for the Group’s branded coffee shops business, restaurants and bars
businesses, and natural resources business had been 1% lower than
management’s estimates as at 31 March 2010, the Group would have
recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill allocated to them
by nil (2009: HK$15,683,000), HK$18,548,000 (2009: HK$20,112,000)
and nil respectively.

If the estimated post-tax discount rate applied to the discounted
cash flow projections for the Group’s branded coffee shops business,
restaurants and bars businesses, and natural resources business had
been 1% higher than management’s estimates as at 31 March 2010, the
Group would have recognised a further impairment loss on goodwill
allocated to them by nil (2009: HK$8,209,000), HK$7,707,000 (2009:
HK$9,072,000) and nil respectively.

Estimated useful lives of intangible assets (other than goodwill)

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
consequent related amortisation rates (if any) for its intangible assets
(other than goodwill). These estimates are based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of comparable intangible assets in
related industries. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated
useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change in amortisable
lives and consequently increase or decrease in amortisation expenses in
future periods.

Estimated fair value of available-for-sale investments

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
available-for-sale investments, the Group determines the fair values
by using valuation technique which is based on information from a
variety of sources, including the latest financial information of the
available-for-sale investments.

Estimated fair value of share options

The determination of the fair value of the share options granted
requires estimates in determining the expected volatility of the share
price, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for
the life of the option as stated in note 38(b). Where the outcome of
the number of options that are exercisable is different, such difference
will impact the consolidated income statement in the subsequent
remaining vesting period of the relevant share options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GEMBRENT
5 REVENUE 5 W
2010 2009
—E-FF —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T ST T
Revenue represents amount received and WHEREEKZ
receivable from: B2 Ug K I
Sales of food and beverages BRHEE 500,808 294,529
Sales of coffee machines 0 o A 5 & 4,173 5,136
Service income AR 7% U A 29,845 9,831
Franchise income BB A 2,269 1,000
Leasing of coffee machines MBE#E & 829 610
Interest income from investments at RIEBRRIZERAAREEREZ
fair value through profit or loss KE/F B U A 99 6,466
538,023 317,572

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is set out in note 33.

AEE 2 Wam oy N33 -

OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES), NET 6 HMWBA (ZH)  F8E
2010 2009
—E2-2F —TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BWFR  EETr
Gain/(loss) on investments at fair value through RIEHRRE AL BRIEZIEE
profit or loss, net Ml (E18) - F58
— Realised -2 &R 3,018 (21,967)
— Unrealised — REAIE 26 (5,709)
Interest income from an associate FEU — B2 RN E 2 F B U A - 229
Interest income from deposits and prepayments 17 3% & K& ¥8 ~f 3038 2 F B WA 219 1,869
Management fee income from an associate B—RBERARICERERA 710 -
Gross rental income of nil (2009: HK$456,000) MEBRSBEWAEBE(ZEZENF -
from a property less direct operating expenses B 456,00070) B EZ K2 B A - 451
Sponsorship income from suppliers BEtE 2 BB A 2,486 -
Others H ity 2,730 280
9,189 (24,847)
OTHER LOSSES, NET 7 HtuEHE - FHE
2010 2009
—E-Z5F —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 7S T T
Impairment loss on available-for-sale investments 1] { 1} & 2~ ¥ & &) )5 (B /& 18 (2,345) (4,222)
Reversal of impairment loss/(impairment loss) ME  MELREEZ
on property, plant and equipment BEEBEERCREEIE) 333 (15,529)
Impairment loss on goodwill (note 17) BEZHEE®E (Mf:T17) (29,174) (118,700)
Decrease in fair value of an investment property & & ¥ 2£ 2 A 72 B & = (3,100)
Exchange gains, net fE N IWE - B8 338 114
(30,848) (141,437)

—ZE—ZFFF 3 Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B &M T

8  FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME, NET 8 HMK(EAR) WA F8
2010 2009
g% -—zIAE
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Interest income from bank deposits WITTERF B WA 81 1,247
Less: Interest on bank borrowings B RITERZFE (219) (451)
(138) 796
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 9 BRBiATEE
2010 2009
—E-EF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Loss before taxation has been arrived MR AT E 1B 2 0B
at after charging the following: Ty &IE -
Auditors’ remuneration ZEENEN & 1,212 886
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME HMELREBEZITE 32,118 22,096
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BNHEERE 2 #H 158 -
Amortisation of trademarks PIE 7 7,889 -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - WMERLRSEY
plant and equipment B8 5 58 322 709
Operating lease payments in respect of leasing rEHHE 2
of premises under EFHARX
— minimum lease payments -HEBEENR 127,184 87,397
— contingent rent - AREE 9,437 6,184
Staff costs (note) BT (M) 156,796 72,928
Share option — consultancy services received Bl - B ESEARS 862 -
Management fee EIEE A 800 800
Provision for inventories to net realisable value FEAEIEFER G 331 856

Note:

Details of Directors’ emoluments included in staff costs are disclosed in note 34.

B =E

EEMEEF AR I H  FFIENRME34HE -

Included in staff costs is an amount of HK$7,210,000 (2009: HK$3,366,000) in ETIXHBEREHEAETHKEAKRE NS
respect of contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes, net of RO R 28 W 2 #5K) & 8 7,210,000 7T

forfeited contributions. (ZZEZNF : B%3,366,0007T) °

08 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited £ + 32 25 4% f 45 [R A 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B IRE N

INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT)

10 FBBxH (ER)

2010 2009
—E-EF —ZEENEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T
Current tax BN IE
Hong Kong &8 3,022 1,351
Under-provision in prior years BEFEBRETE 74 221
. 309 1572
Deferred tax IR E T 18
Origination and reversal of temporary differences RS EE 7 EA N (3,020) (2,892)
Impact of change in Hong Kong profits tax rate ~ B /B A S IH R E & v 7 & - (1,270)
____________________________________________________________________________________________________ (3,020) _____(4,162)
Income tax expenses/(credit) FEHiZ i UGE%) 76 (2,590)
Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) %E /% )l ?ﬁE‘ T_u_ 1R 15 & A ZCI]I‘J A Al 2 H 5 E R
on the estimated assessable profits after offsetting losses brought ot g AR AT HA 4 3

forward of each individual company.

Overseas taxation including Singapore and Mainland China taxation is
calculated based on the rates applicable in the relevant jurisdictions on

the estimated assessable profits.

Details of deferred tax are disclosed in note 29.

The income tax expenses/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before taxation per consolidated income statement as follows:

“ETNAF  165%)FHE

BN IR B IR N K R
838 T 3 {51 P& SR Bl 0at A1)

BFERZRETE -

BT IR 2 7 IS 20 58 -

AEEREHXHE (EL)BREES KR
RIVRZBRHAIBIESRNT ¢

o

7
i

mEZEBERRERB E£16.5%
6.

WIHE  &F
B RDEE &

I

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
EMTR  EETr
Loss before taxation R Al 1B (22,016) (161,360)
Adjust for: Share of results of associates HEC EBMERAERS (221) (11,229)
(22,237) (172,589)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of 16.5% AR TS T R 16.5%5T & 2 T 18
(2009: 16.5%) (ZEZENF :16.5%) (3,669) (28,477)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating RN EM A ZEERELE 2B A G 2
in other jurisdictions O ES0-2 (94) (1,189)
Remeasurement of deferred tax — change in BN ERERE-FENEH
Hong Kong profits tax rate ) = (1,270)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TABNETH BB E 5,529 24,993
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBMBRAZHEGEZE (708) (1,677)
Tax effect of current year’s tax losses not recognised & FERER I MBHEEZHBEF 2 1,081 5,163
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not previously B E KA ER 2 MIEEIEZ
recognised MG & (2,115) (354)
Tax effect of recognition of tax losses not previously FERBE R ER 2 MIKEIE 2
recognised MR E (22) -
Under-provision in prior years BEFERBEIR 74 221
Income tax expenses/(credit) SR (K %) 76 (2,590)

—ZF—ZFF 3R Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEHMBHRENT
11 DIVIDENDS 11 RE
2010 2009
—E2-=F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Interim dividend of HKO0.1 cent BR B HA % B & A% 0.1 11
(2009: HKO.1 cent) per share, paid (note) ZETRF 0.08) (M EE) 2,155 2,155
Final dividend of HKO0.5 cent ¥R R H IR B & R%0.58 1
(2009: HKO.1 cent) per share, proposed (note) ZEZERF 018 M) (M) 11,277 2,156
13,432 4,311
A final dividend of HKO.5 cent per share, totalling HK$11,277,000, AKRAREFREZIKRZE RIS lHXO 5/% il -
which is based on 2,255,400,000 issued shares as at 2 June 2010, has El B HEBE®11,277,000C (B IBEBR-_ZE—ZFF

12
(a)

(b)

been proposed by the Directors of the Company and is subject to
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. The amount will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
profits for the year ending 31 March 2011.

Note: Interim or final dividend per share was adjusted, taking into account of
the share subdivision on 30 March 2010.

LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable
to equity holders of the Company as set out below by the weighted

12
(a)

7N A = B 2 2,255,400,000 A% & 3 17 Hx 1% i &
F) o FRERIEERZBEREF RS it

EEE ZEFBERRBE_T——F=A
=S+—BLEFEARBRASREBENZDIK

fiet: BRhTPHIARPRELERE T —ZF
ZA=TBRETHBRMDFARE

BRER
5 1% B A B I8 To AR B T 5 AT R 2 AR A
B A A S BB A SF 0 BB AT B AR 2 N

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year, as adjusted FHBEE  WRRMIFANZ B ETHE
for the effect of share subdivision (note 27 (ii)). (B 3E27(01)) °
2010 2009
—E-ZF —EENE
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BETT
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company AN 2 &) J& # 35 5 A JE 5 & 18 22,092 158,770
Number Number
of shares of shares
BoHE BRDE B
’000 ’000
1 F i
Weighted average number of ordinary shares DETE®BIRZ
in issue hn#E 35 2,165,811 2,155,400
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FRERENEE GBI 1.02 7.37
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average (b)y BREEEEDNGER-ZE-—ZF=A="

number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares granted under the Company’s share
option scheme/arrangement after taking into account of the share
subdivision (note 27 (ii)) on 30 March 2010. As the adjusted exercise
price of the share options granted by the Company was higher than
the relevant average market price of the Company’s shares for the year
ended 31 March 2010, those outstanding share options granted, which
amounted to 150,000,000 shares (note 38(b)) as at 31 March 2010, had
no dilutive effect on loss per share for the year ended 31 March 2010.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$12,981,000 (2009: Loss of HK$80,907,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HEBMBHERNE

13 ERARREFEARGERR (BR)

FAERRD 7;1;}'&&%22}& RIREREE AR
@ 7 B8 ’%1298100071(— TENF S
5‘%72%5%%%580 907,0007T,) °

14 V¥ BERRE

The Group N E
Store Furniture,
machine, fixtures,
leasehold office
improvement equipment
and and motor
Buildings equipment vehicles Total
IEEE . B KB
HEWE /NS
BF HBREHE RERRE W
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BETT
Cost 2N
At 1 April 2008 R_ZZENFHHA—R - 95,329 3,260 98,589
Exchange realignment fE AR - (817) - (817)
Additions NE - 13,619 495 14,114
Step-up acquisition of interest in BE-EBE AR
an associate (note 30) 2 (M 3E30) 2,160 46,168 - 48,328
Disposal/write off HE - (14,930) - (14,930)
Transfer from investment property HAKEME 1,550 - - 1,550
At 31 March 2009 RZEZAF=H=1T—H 3,710 139,369 3,755 146,834
Exchange realignment BE 1 =& - 771 - 771
Additions NE - 30,222 283 30,505
Disposal/write off HE i - (24,394) (54) (24,448)
At 31 March 2010 WZE—ZTF=F=+—H 3,710 145,968 3,984 153,662
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 2 5t 37 8 K& Bl &
At 1 April 2008 R_ZZENFHHA—A - 37,590 1,533 39,123
Exchange realignment [E i, & - (566) - (566)
Charge for the year FEWE - 21,028 1,068 22,096
Impairment loss recognised BRRREER - 15,529 - 15,529
Disposal/write off HE - (12,734) - (12,734)
At 31 March 2009 RZFETNF=A=+—H - 60,847 2,601 63,448
Exchange realignment 0E 5 - 585 - 585
Charge for the year FEFE 146 31,034 938 32,118
Reversal of impairment loss B 18 2 B - (333) = (333)
Disposal/write off HE = (23,489) (14) (23,503)
At 31 March 2010 RZE-—ZF=RA=+—H 146 68,644 3,525 72,315
Carrying amount AR ED
At 31 March 2010 RZTE-—FF=A=-+—H 3,564 77,324 459 81,347
At 31 March 2009 RZEENF=H=+—H 3,710 78,522 1,154 83,386
As at 31 March 2009, the Group had pledged a building with carrying RZETZAF=ZA=+—H  AEEZER
amount of HK$2,160,000 to secure general banking facilities (note 26). IR T 1B /43 75 % 2,160,000 7T 2 & F1E & — R R
1715 B4 4R (T 5 26)
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ARE RIS B B A

15 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

15 FEAHEERE

The Group NE
HK$’000
BT
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENFWMA—H -
Step-up acquisition of interest in an associate (note 30) 1% 3 — R Bt & D 7] 2 4 25 (M1 5%30) 1,640
Transfer from investment property EgREWE 5,150
At 31 March 2009 R_FETNRF=ZA=1+—H 6,790
Amortisation B i (158)
At 31 March 2010 R-_FT—FTFE=-A=1—H 6,632

The prepaid lease payments are for leases located in Hong Kong which

are held under medium-term.

As at 31 March 2009, the Group had pledged a leasehold land with

Eﬁ%ﬁfﬁ XRBDARREPRENERTERA
HE -

R-ZZEZNF=ZA=1+—H  AEEEZHIR
H1E A5 1,640,000t 2 HE L HEA — K

carrying amount of HK$1,640,000 to secure general banking facilities

(note 26).

16 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
The Company

ﬁE?ﬂZfﬂfﬁ#ﬁ(W #26) ©
16 PGS ARz EE

KA T
(a) Interests in subsidiaries (a) FIEMEBATZHEzZ

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT BT T

Unlisted shares, at cost JELFTIRG ARG E 208,870 204,420

Amounts due from subsidiaries JE BT B A R IR 3R

— non-current portion - JEE HEH 366,965 390,732
Less: Provision for impairment (note 16(c)) S R E B (M s 16(c)) (160,840) (169,868)

414,995 425,284

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no pre-determined repayment terms.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in the

following currencies:

P LA P JB8 X A MR K A R 1 4 B S R B

I B 48 TE B I& 155K o

FEUW KB R RIRFRIA NI EE REL :

2010 2009
—E-2F —ETNF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BETT BETT
Hong Kong dollar 7 309,549 338,074
Singapore dollar N oo 51,745 48,190
Renminbi AR H#E 5,671 4,468
366,965 390,732
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. REEEAE R ERE
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries as at 31 March AAR-FT—THE=A=+—HAZF%
2010 are set out in note 42. M ARl A IEE N M 42 o
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(b)

(c)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEHMBHRRNE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 16 FrihBiE DRz s
The Company (continued) AT E)
Amounts due from subsidiaries — current portion (b) EWKHEBRARRK-EHIH
2010 2009
—g-2 —TINF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Amounts due from subsidiaries J7E U B /B N ) bR 3R 37,164 30,969
Less: Provision for impairment (note 16(c)) S R E B E (BT s 16(0)) (39) (398)
37,125 30,571
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free TE WHBARIERRAERERES W
and repayable on demand. AR EREFER -
The amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in Hong JEE U5 BT B8 & B IR KL /75 MRBEA - HiR
Kong dollar. The carrying amounts approximate their fair EEREAAEBEREE
values.
Movement of provision for impairment (c) BEREBED
2010 2009
= i —ETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETF T
At 1 April RHA—A 170,266 71,819
Impairment loss recognised O RERREE B 32,332 101,829
Reversal of impairment loss BB & 1B 2 B E (41,719) (3,382)
At 31 March W=A=+—8 160,879 170,266
Amounts due to subsidiaries (d) ENHBRTRK

As at 31 March 2009, the amounts due to subsidiaries were
unsecured, interest-free and were repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2009, the amounts due to subsidiaries were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The carrying amounts
approximated their fair values.

—ZF—ZFF 3R Annual Report 2010
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBRENT

17 GOODWILL AND TRADEMARKS 17 BAERBRE
The Group &
Goodwill Trademarks Total
[EES [EEES B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BET T
At 1 April 2008 RZEZENFMOA—A 84,010 108,000 192,010
Step-up acquisition of interest in RS ANT
an associate (note 30) = (M 5E30) 118,364 10,337 128,701
Transfer from interest in A= RN 4
an associate (note 18) R (MsT18) 53,179 - 53,179
255,553 118,337 373,890
Impairment loss recognised (note 7) & # 32 ek 18 &5 18 (B 5E7) (118,700) - (118,700)
At 31 March 2009 RZEZEAF=ZA=+—8H 136,853 118,337 255,190
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 31) U B — R B B 2 B (BT 5E31) 5,117 - 5,117
Adjustment arising from finalisation #& ¥ 1% B§ — ]
of purchase consideration B NT 2
for step-up acquisition of EROWERE
interest in an associate EEZHE (661) - (661)
Amortisation b - (7,889) (7,889)
Impairment loss recognised (note 7) & # 32 ek 1B /&5 18 (B 5E7) (29,174) = (29,174)
At 31 March 2010 RZTE-—ZFTF=H=+—H 112,135 110,448 222,583

The trademarks were purchased as parts of business combinations.
Trademark, after amortisation, of HK$100,800,000 (2009:
HK$108,000,000) is related to the branded coffee shops business while
HK$9,648,000 (2009: HK$10,337,000) is related to restaurants and bars
businesses.

The trademarks of branded coffee shops business and restaurants and
bars businesses are considered by the management of the Group as
having a finite life of 15 years.

The amortisation of trademarks of HK$7,889,000 (2009: nil) is
included in selling and distribution costs.

These trademarks will be tested for impairment annually and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired. Particulars of
impairment testing are disclosed in note 4(a) and as follows:

4 Chevalier Pacific Holdings Limited £ + 5 25 1% i 45 fR 2 7

BABREDEBGHES — &  #iHE
8 12 4 % 100,800,000 T(Z T Z L F : B
108,000,000 7T ) J5 6 78 mm M N BE /& £ 75 - M
75 19,648,000 70 (= Z NF : 7 #10,337,000
L) E R E A BT -

AEBEERERR  mEMYEE XK RER
REBXB ASBERAERFH/IF -

7 1 8 5 8 157,889,000 (ZETE AL F &)
Bt AHE KA A ©

BENEEEREGELHTERETREFE
TTRERIE o B BRI 2 FE BRI 5E4(a) R #E
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17 GOODWILL AND TRADEMARKS (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and trademarks

(a)

(b)

Food and beverages

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$34,260,000 (2009:
HK$34,260,000) and trademark, after amortisation, of
HK$100,800,000 (2009: HK$108,000,000) are allocated to
the Group’s branded coffee shops business. The estimated
recoverable amount determined is based on fair value less costs
to sell. These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up to the fifth
year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year to
fifteen year, gross profit margin of 75% and a discount rate of
11% per annum.

Goodwill, after impairment, of HK$72,758,000 (2009:
HK$102,593,000) and trademark, after amortisation, of
HK$9,648,000 (2009: HK$10,337,000) are allocated to the
The estimated
recoverable amount determined is based on fair value less costs

Group’s restaurants and bars businesses.
to sell. These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a one-year period. Cash flows beyond the one-year period are
extrapolated using a 2% growth rate per annum up to the fifth
year and zero growth rate per annum from the sixth year to
fifteen year, gross profit margin of 76% and a discount rate of

11% per annum.

As a result of the impairment tests performed, impairment
loss of nil (2009: HK$49,750,000) and HK$29,174,000 (2009:
HK$68,950,000) were made on the goodwill allocated to the
Group’s branded coffee shops business and restaurants and bars
businesses respectively. Management is of the view that such
impairment has resulted from the global economic downturn.
No class of asset other than goodwill was impaired. The loss
has been included in other losses in these consolidated financial
statements.

Natural resources

No impairment is made on goodwill of HK$5,117,000 allocated
to the Group’s natural resources business. The estimated
recoverable amount determined is based on fair value less costs
to sell. These calculations use post-tax cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a
one-year period.

Management’s determination on budgeted growth rates and gross

profit margins is based on the past performance and market

expectation. The discount rates used are post-tax and reflect specific

risks relating to these businesses.

17 BHE

HEBMBHERNE

EEEwE

BHERERZEERNR

(a)

(b)

£

SR B 18 75 34,260,000 70 ( Z B Z S, 4F -
7 & 34,260,000 TT) 2 OB & B E &
75 100,800,000 T(ZEENE : B
108,000,0007C) 2 IEHE D L E AR K E 2
oo RN B S 35 7% o (R AT Uk B SR T iR
HARhBEREEXNAEE - BEZTE
NEREEREEEHZ —FHYKEE
ZHREBEeREBEE  —FREFAF
ZHEREBEREEATF20RMENF
EETRAFAETRER  EFFEK75%K
FEBIBER1N%MAEL -

B 15 76 572,758,000 T (Z BT AL £ -
7 1 102,593,000 7T) 2 B B K # H &
7 9,648,000 L(ZZEENF : BK
10,337,00070) Z EIZEE W D B & A & &
ZBBERBEER o 5o i m S5E Ty
REARBERBESKAEE B @25
BENFEREEEC MR —FHUBE
BrRErBeREEA  —FREFAH
FZReREBEER BT F 20 IEE N
FEEF+RAFATHEEER THE76%
FEFHRELNmMESE -

HREETHEBEAIR  PREAEE
2 o RO O B B RS A K B EE NOB I
BZEE AL REBERELES
(ZE2EZ N F ¢ B ¥ 49,750,000 7T) K
75 #29,174,000 T(ZEZE N F + B
68,950,0007T) - ERER A BEARE
AR mEHER RN ER
AR EERE - BEEEFTALEZLRS
i mr 2 EMEIER -

XRER

MERPEEAEB I RARERERZ
75 2 7% ¥ 5,117,000 7T 1E HUR A © (5T A
WEHBEIZERAARBEREERAE
E-BBZAENFEREREE#HIZZ
—FHPKEE  HBRESRERA -

EEENREERELAMERAYPEEREMN
BERRENE MAERIBRXSHRE
ZHME  BRBRZEXEH2HERR -
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FEHMBHRENT
18 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 18 Fiih—EBE AR Z2ER
(a) Interestin an associate (a) FIE—EBEATZESR
The Group The Company
wE NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-2f —TTNGF ZBE-TF —_FTTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T B¥Tr  RBETR BT T
At 1 April KnEA—H 1,079 77,963 - 67,377
Share of result FTiE 34 221 11,229 = -
Step-up acquisition of interest in BE-HBERRZ
an associate (note 30) #E %5 (P 5E30) - 1,079 = -
Dividend received B U B (368) (17,485) = -
Eliminated on business combination EEE MY = (18,528) = (67,377)
Transfer to goodwill (note 17) R (HfiE17) - (53,179) = —
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 932 1,079 = -

(b)

On 31 March 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 51% of the
issued share capital of its associated company, Sinochina Enterprises
Limited (“SEL”), from Sinochina Pacific Limited, an independent third
party. After the acquisition, SEL became a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Group.

RZEZAF=ZA=+—H8 AEERBEL
2 = J5Sinochina Pacific Limited!§ 85 £ B & A
FlSinochina Enterprises Limited ([SEL])

51%2 2 ?*éﬁﬂxl" MU E % - SELK R A 5%
E2EWNERAA

Interest in an associate as at 31 March 2010 included goodwill of N = =% % E A=+— E' * B fh — &l
HK$448,000 (2009: HK$448,000). B & N Al 2 BB TS B S 1 448,000 7T
(ZZFTNHF - % 448,0007T) °
Details of the Group’s associate, which is unlisted, is as follows: REBMZIFLETE BlZHBAOT :
Percentage of
Name Place of incorporation/operation interest held Principal activity
i 45 3 ‘
=k AR % EFTEXE®R
Orchid International Limited Hong Kong 50 Operation of a bar
& R
Summary of financial information of the Group’s associate is as AEBBMERRZHBENBENT
follows:
Assets Liabilities Revenue Profit
BE afE = i Rl
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
AT BETR A¥TRT BETR
2010 —E T 1,484 516 7,593 442
2009 —_TENEF 2,124 862 8,697 1,172

Amount due from an associate
Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The amount due from an associate is denominated in Hong Kong
dollar. The carrying amount approximates its fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B IRE N

19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The Group

Available-for-sale investments as at 31 March comprise:

19 AHEEZRE
rEH

R=ZA=t—BAHLEZKRERRE :

2010 2009
—%-%% -—TINF
HKS$’000 HK$’000
BET T BET T
Investment in a venture capital fund, at fair value REIKES Z7IEE  RARKEBEFE 5,405 6,978
Unlisted equity securities, at cost less impairment  3E E T 2 R AE FH - KA IR BE - 215
5,405 7,193

Available-for-sale investments are denominated in the following AHEEZREUTIEE REN :

currencies:

2010 2009
— —EENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BMTR  AMTr
US dollar ETT 5,405 6,978
Hong Kong dollar kst = 215
5,405 7,193

20 INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT

20 RESKRERAIAEBEEZRE

OR LOSS
The Group rEH
Investments at fair value through profit or loss as at 31 March R=A=+—8B RERKEZAREREZ
comprise: wEBIE
2010 2009
— —ZEENF
HK$’000 HK$°000
EETR BETIT
Unlisted investments: FLETERE
— mutual funds -BEES 327 2,668
Listed investments: FHRE -
— debt securities, listed overseas -E%ESF  BINET - 20,156
327 22,824
The fair values of the unlisted investments are determined by reference FLEMIKRE Z RAEHLRABESREE
to quoted prices from the relevant financial institutions and the listed ZHREMETE M EmKREIZRBARZ S M
investments are determined based on the quoted market bid price Fr¥k 2 5 Ej BmEE -
available on the relevant exchanges.
The carrying amounts of investments at fair value through profit or NERIREAREREZRERAEIAET
loss are denominated in US dollar. RER -
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e BERRM T
21 INVENTORIES 21 78
The Group NE
2010 2009
—2-2& -—TThx
HK$’000 HK$°000
BE T BT T
Food and beverages B8 11,560 9,313
Consumable stores FER DR 2,075 2,420
13,635 11,733
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense and included in cost FEXRAERRREBILICBEREE
of sales amounted to HK$113,032,000 (2009: HK$80,415,000). BARNZEFEERKAAEE 113,032,000 7T
(ZZEZTNHF - E%380,415,0007T) °
22 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 22 EBRiRNR FHEREREANKE
The Group The Company
& YN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-BE —TTNF —B-BF —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000
BT BT BEFTR ABET
Trade debtors Z 5 R R 6,219 4,572 = -
Other debtors, deposits and H b B WOIR 5K
prepayments i Re RIENKIA 52,400 59,293 531 1,859
58,619 63,865 531 1,859
Analysed for reporting purposes: EsRE BB 29T -
Non-current assets FERBEE 23,457 24,461 - -
Current assets mEhE E 35,162 39,404 531 1,859
58,619 63,865 531 1,859
The Group has established different credit policies for customers in AEEHZERZOEB 2 2EFERL AR 2
each of its core businesses. The credit period granted to trade debtors EEBR -BRUWHE UREBMNEEZE
ranges from 30 to 45 days except for sales of food and beverages at FHEFEANRCHEEIN LTEHEFE
coffee shops, and restaurants and bars, which are mainly on cash basis. BN F30845K o
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GEMBRENT
22 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) 22 FEWRR FHEESRBESRE®S)
The ageing analysis of trade debtors is as follows: BZRRIRR ZIREE DT T ¢
The Group
TEE
2010 2009
—E-8F -—TTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
0-60 days 0-60X 5,344 3,417
61-90 days 61-90 K 374 521
Over 90 days 190K 501 634
6,219 4,572
As at 31 March 2010, trade debtors of HK$3,903,000 (2009: RZE—TF=A=+—0 - #%3,903,0007T
HK$3,298,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to (ZEZTNF : B 83,298, OOOE)Z g5 e
individuals or companies for whom there is no recent history of RAREFPERARRE - ZRBEEBAXAD
default. AIER MRFAKRGE|EOCEE °
The Group
rEE
2010 2009
—g-8F -—TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T ST T
Less than 60 days past due BHI 160 H 3,452 2,484
61-90 days past due #8612 90 H 304 331
Over 90 days past due #HA90H A b 147 483
3,903 3,298

Trade debtors’ balances that are neither past due nor impaired
mainly relate to individuals or companies that have been the Group’s
customers for more than six months with no history of default in the

past.

As at 31 March 2010 and 2009, none of the trade debtor’s balance was
individually determined to be impaired and related to customer that
was in financial difficulties. Consequently, no specific provision for
impairment was recognised as at the end of each reporting period. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The carrying amounts of trade debtors are denominated in the

following currencies:

WARBBMIFARBEZE S EBIRAGEEE
BEAKRBHEE - WE1 R4 EERB A

@A B i@ E &

BRREZEP -

s}ml
A

ﬁ&%

BREIERRZIREER NIEEREM

The Group
# %

2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Hong Kong dollar B 6,166 4,562
Other currencies H B 53 10
6,219 4,572
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e B RRM T
22 DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued) 22 EBRiENR FHEREERESKER®
The carrying amounts of other debtors and deposits are denominated HEmEWRREFELES ZIREES &
in the following currencies: WREM
The Group The Company
rE N
2010 2009 2010 2009
“E-FF _TTNF ZT-FF —_TTNF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BT E¥TT BE¥FTR EE TR
Hong Kong dollar o 44,019 43,497 531 1,859
Singapore dollar o0 ot 1,884 2,748 = -
Renminbi AR 328 811 - -
US dollar £ - 245 - -
46,231 47,301 531 1,859
The carrying amounts of debtors and deposits approximate their fair FEUW IR R R 7 1R € 2 IR E B B EH A 5 E A8
values. H e
23 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 23 RERRELEEY
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held, short-term bank RekReEFEBMEEMFERS RIS
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less and cash PR A& =18 A sk LA A 2 58 B IR 1T 17 ;R R 17 10 B
placed with financial institutions. BREBEFOZRE -
The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair values. ZEEEZIEABEHEEARBEESE o
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in ReLReSEYIREENTINEE RE
the following currencies: iz :
The Group The Company
rE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—ZT—FF _TTNF —B-%F —TTIhHF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT B¥TR BB T
Hong Kong dollar ok 73,208 54,829 30,636 4,830
US dollar EJT 33,508 115,918 13,443 105,235
Renminbi AR 2,613 1,122 = -
Singapore dollar o ot 2,284 1,710 = -
Other currencies HipE 23 21 23 21
111,636 173,600 44,102 110,086
The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 0.2% (2009: EHRTEFRZEBRFEE X R 02%
0.7%) per annum and these deposits have an average maturity of 16 (ZZ2EZNF 1 07%) F ZZEFRTFHHHE
days (2009: 15 days). RAIB(ZZEZENF 1 158)
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LA BHRE N

24 CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS 24 ERARR BEAZRERFEREHR

The Group The Company
rE ARF
2010 2009 2010 2009
—2-8F —TThF —B-BF —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
BT BETT BE8FTR BE¥ T
Trade creditors B ERNIER 12,526 10,964 = -
Other creditors, deposits and H At JE TR 5K
accruals FAZE RFERE R 39,925 56,387 1,329 1,213
Consideration payable for ¥ 5% SEL 2
the step-up acquisition of SEL JET B
(note 30) (B 5E30) = 95,047 = 95,047
52,451 162,398 1,329 96,260

BHRMIERZIREDITMAT -

The ageing analysis of trade creditors is as follows:

The Group
&g

2010 2009
—EB-FF —EENEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BB T BB T T
0-60 days 0-60K 12,391 10,777
61-90 days 61-90K - 50
Over 90 days BI0RK 135 137
12,526 10,964

BIRNRRZIREEATINEE BB :

The carrying amounts of trade creditors are denominated in the
following currencies:

The Group
rE

2010 2009
—E-ZF —TTNEF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T & F T
Hong Kong dollar B 11,475 9,235
Singapore dollar N3 ot 630 804
Renminbi AR 233 662
Other currencies Hih B 188 263
12,526 10,964

—ZF—ZFF 3R Annual Report 2010
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B &M AT

25

26

24 CREDITORS, DEPOSITS AND ACCRUALS (continued) 24 EBNURK -FARESRARBER@®
The carrying amounts of other creditors are denominated in the HEMEMIERZIREEATIIEEREMN
following currencies:

The Group The Company
REE NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
—g-BF —TTAF —B-BE _TTAL
HKS$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT AT EBETR AETT
Hong Kong dollar okt 6,569 120,565 346 95,333
Renminbi AR & 173 51 = -
Singapore dollar N T 78 11 = -
6,820 120,627 346 95,333
The carrying amounts of creditors approximate their fair values. ERMERZIREEBEEE AR EEE -
AMOUNT DUE TO ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 25 Eﬁ%%f iR 2 B R X 3
The amount due to ultimate holding company is unsecured, interest- [E \"JL ¢ 53 T’i Hg: § AR REER LR L - I
free and repayable on demand. BAREBRFER o
The amount due to ultimate holding company is denominated in Hong AN R AZAE R A ) T% FTABEREN - AR
Kong dollar. The carrying amount approximates its fair value. EEREQAARBERE -
BANK BORROWINGS 26 SRITERK
The Group
~EH
2010 2009
—g-%F —TINF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT BT
The bank borrowings are repayable as follows: RITEFIE Y FHEE
Within one year R—FR 16,500 6,207
More than one year but not exceeding two years —F A FETNEBBEBME - 20,790
More than two years but not exceeding five years MEANEETBBASE = 1,326
16,500 28,323
Less: Amount due within one year disclosed B RN —F AR
under current liabilities mE B BN EZIRR (16,500) (6,207)
- 22,116
Representing by: -
Secured (note) B AR (P 31) = 1,812
Unsecured i 4 3 16,500 26,511
16,500 28,323

The bank borrowings bear floating interest rate at an average effective

interest rate of 0.6% (2009: 2.6%) per annum.

The bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollar.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate their fair

values.

The exposure of the bank borrowings to interest-rate changes and the

contractual repricing dates are below six months.

Note:

The banking facilities for the year ended 31 March 2009 were secured by
leasehold land and building with carrying amounts of HK$1,640,000 (note 15)

and HK$2,160,000 (note 14) respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBHER T

27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 BAK
Number
of shares
R EAR
>000 HK$’000
T B BET T
Authorised ordinary shares: EEEEAR
At 1 April 2008 and RZZEZENFOA-B R
31 March 2009 of —EEAE=A=+—8H
HK$0.5 per share % 7 #0.57T 350,000 175,000
Share subdivision (note (ii)) [& 1 % 48 (B9 3£ Gi)) 3,150,000 =
At 31 March 2010 of R-ZFE-FF=ZA=+—HH
HK$0.05 per share [i% 7% #0.05 7T 3,500,000 175,000
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares: BEETEREHENERR
At 1 April 2008 and RZZEZNFHA-BR
31 March 2009 of —EEAE=ZA=+—80H
HK$0.5 per share A% 7% #0.57T 215,540 107,770
Issue of shares (note (i)) f& 17 217 (BT 3E34)) 10,000 5,000
Share subdivision (note (ii)) & 49 48 (B 5 i)) 2,029,860 =
At 31 March 2010 of N-ZZE—ZEFE=F=+—H0H
HK$0.05 per share % 5 #0.05 7T 2,255,400 112,770

Notes:

(i) The Company issued 10,000,000 new shares to an independent third (i) ZN/NE
758 =75 #4710,000,000% #TA 1 © FE R X
i Bl 2 B 47 3 7T B9 P 15 3R IR 78 78 %23,000,000
To o EHIR BT HE 2 KRHBITHRER

party on 22 February 2010. The proceeds of the issue of shares before
expenses amounted to HK$23,000,000. The net proceeds of the issue of
shares amounted to HK$22,339,000 after deducting the expenses of the

issue.

T-TE-A-+t-ARN—4B

TH 5 58 & 78 #22,339,0007T °

(ii)  Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 30 March (i) BREARAR-_F-—FTF=A=+HBBDH

2010, the issued and unissued share of HK$0.5 each has been subdivided

into ten shares of HK$0.05 each.

TBRBR  BROB®STHE BT ARE

TR B AR TIRERER0.057T 2t

(iii)  Details of the Group’s share option are disclosed in note 38. (i) AEAANSEEBEREFBERIFISKE -
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B IR M AT
28 RESERVES 28 fiEfE
The Group &
Retained
Capital Share Exchange Asset profits/
Share  redemption option fluctuation revaluation  (accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Total
EXEm BRE  MERR  EEER REBEN/
Bl e BE  FDEE BE (RFER) 4
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000
BRTL  BMTL  BMTL  BMTr  BMTr  BETr  BETx
Atlapdl2008 RZETNEOAZA 305 . L L3 o 1387 4858 |
Comprehensive loss: EEER
Loss for the year FEBR - - - - - (158,770) (158,770)
Other comprehensive B2 E
(loss)/income: (F8)/ W
Exchange difference on BEENHEAT
translation of operations of EBHMEEL
overseas subsidiaries HNEHBER - - - (701) - - (701)
Change in fair value of an MR EZREN
available-for-sale investment INREEE) - - - - (11,783) - (11,783)
Fair value adjustments BE-REEARZ
upon step-up acquisition ERkH
of interest in an associate AL ERE - - - - 908 - 908
Total comprehensive loss FE2A
_fortheyear ] BRE® T o (o) (8770)  (170346)
Transaction with owners BREFAEMTZRS
Dividends paid ERBEE - - - - - (17,044) (17,44)
Totaltransactionwithowners  REBARFT2RA88 - - - oo (1) (7).
At 31 March 2009 REBENEZA=T—H 33803 14 - 3,648 136 (44,141) 297,692
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LA B IRE N AT

28 RESERVES (continued) 28 f#E@

The Group &
Capital Share  Exchange Asset
Share  redemption option  fluctuation  revaluation Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total

EXRE BRE SHERE EEEfR
Bt aE it BE FBEE i RIER 2R
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
ARTR BMTr RMTn ERTR  BMTr AR ERTR

(At March2009 RIZEAFZA=T-A 38055 ] N .. B6 . U4un) 2769
Comprehensive loss: 2HEER:
Loss for the year FEBE = = = = = (22,092) (22,092)
Other comprehensive Hit2m
income/(loss): B/ (B8):
Exchange difference on BEBNHTBAR
translation of operations of FEHELEL
overseas subsidiaries NERBER - 315 = - 315
Change in fair value of an AHHEZREN
available-for-sale investment AREEY - - (1,573) - (1,573)
Impairment loss on an ERERANERN
available-for-sale investment afttey
transferred to consolidated RENRE
income statement EiE = = 2,345 = 2,345
Total comprehensive EER2E
. income/(loss) for theyear | b/ BRRR - oo o T a0 (@L005)
Transactions with owners HBREBAETZRS
Dividends paid ERRE = = = (4311) (4311)
Issue of shares (note 27) BTG (M3E27) - - - - 18,000
Share issuance expenses BOIRH T - = = = (661)
Share option EiRE
~ consultancy services received -EERARK 862 _ _ _ 862
Total ransactions withowners - REFARGZRARE 039 - 82 T A (431) 13890
At31 March 2010 RZE-FE-A=+—-H 862 3,963 908 (70,544) 290,577
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B &M AT

28 RESERVES (continued) 28 f@EE®

The Company &AT
Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption option Retained
premium surplus reserve reserve profits Total
EXEQE BhRE
RDEE PN wE wE REEHN nE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BRI BETT BETT BET T BETT
(note)
(M=)
AL April2008 R-FZ/\FOACE 338,035 626 ] Yo T 109076 453,351
Comprehensive loss: 2EEBE:
Loss for the year FEER - - - - (80,907) (80,907)
Total comprehensive loss EEZ
fortheyear T S . S (80.907) (80,907)
Transaction with owners BREEAETZRS
Dividends paid ERRE - - - - (17,244) (17,244)
Totaltransactionwithowners ~ REFARG2RA®E - - - - U7.244)  (17.244)
(A3 March 2009 RIFENFZAZSZE 338035 626 Y o] 1095 355,200
Comprehensive income: 2EWE
Profit for the year FRBN - - - - 12,981 12,981
Total comprehensive income EE2MH
_fortheyear . UL S R R 12981 ] 12,981
Transactions with owners BREEAETZRS
Dividends paid ENRA - - - - (4,311) (4,311)
Issue of shares (note 27) BITRR A (M &E27) 18,000 - - - - 18,000
Share issuance expenses BIROTH (661) = = = = (661)
Share option BikE
- consultancy services received -EERARE - - - 862 - 862
Total transactions withowners ~~ REFARTZRGEB | s R S R 82 | @31) ] 13890
At 31 March 2010 RZE-FF=F=1—H 355,374 6,226 14 862 19,595 382,071
Note: e &E -

ERDIEERENB AR EEFEERR A 7S
ZENBRBAMBETZRNIEEEZMNEHE -
BREBEBRE-NN—FRAEEER) - XAA
BABBAHIIKTRR

The balance represents the difference between the value of net assets of
subsidiaries acquired and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares
issued for the acquisition. Under the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for distribution
to shareholders.
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29 DEFERRED TAX
The Group

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
LA B IRE N

29

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a

legally enforceable right to set off current

tax assets against current tax

liabilities and when the deferred tax relates to the same fiscal authority.

The net amounts are as follows:

I SE B IR
B 3L

6 B A AOR R B IT Z A K E
A ST 75 18 B2 [
CEEBBEERBEEAR

AEBEHPRBEERE
I 7 6 R
B o FEMT

HRBEAR
— 8

2010 2009
—g-%% -—TThF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E (1,476)
Deferred tax liabilities BRI A A E 19,557 21,101
18,081 21,101
The movement of net deferred tax liabilities is as follows: FELERIESEFEEHNOT ¢
2010 2009
—E-EF ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T ST T
At 1 April RMHA—A 21,101 22,199
Step-up acquisition of interest in e TN
an associate (note 30) 1 7= (B uESO) - 3,064
Impact of change in Hong Kong profits RIRERANFTAZBE BTG
tax rate credited to income statement HEREH & = (1,270)
Credited to income statement R EERAEA (3,020) (2,892)
At 31 March R=A=+—~H” 18,081 21,101
The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities BEMBEEENELEHBEEBZEHUES
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the BRI DA R A 2 AAREHENT ¢
same tax jurisdiction are as follows:
Deferred tax assets: EEFIAE E ¢
Tax Tax losses
depreciation and others Total
HEBBER
RIEHE H we
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2008 and 2009 RZEENFR_ZZNF
mAH—H - - -
Credited to income statement R RRET A 1,141 400 1,541
At 31 March 2010 RZTE—ZFTF=F=+—H 1,141 400 1,541
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FEHMBHRENT
29 DEFERRED TAX (continued) 29 EEBIE@)
Deferred tax liabilities: FRERIEGE
Tax
depreciation Trademarks Total
HERE [ERES W
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 April 2008 RZZEZENFMA—H 3,299 18,900 22,199
Step-up acquisition of interest in e Rl RNl g
an associate (note 30) (B .ﬁso) 1,358 1,706 3,064
Impact of change in Hong Kong WU ER &R AFTAZ
profits tax rate credited to BEMEGT =&
income statement 7 (190) (1,080) (1,270)
Credited to income statement U i‘«:z At A (2,892) (2,892)
At 31 March 2009 RZEZENF=ZA=1+—H 1,575 19,526 21,101
Credited to income statement R EERAEA (177) (1,302) (1,479)
At 31 March 2010 RZE—ZTF=A=+—H 1,398 18,224 19,622
At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not recognise RB|BEBR ARARFENTFHEREET 2
deductible temporary differences of HK$314,018,000 (2009: = ZrK EBRVARAHABREEE LXK

30

HK$321,799,000) due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of HK$42,416,000 (2009:
HK$40,611,000) which will gradually expire by 2015. Other tax losses

may be carried forward indefinitely.

STEP-UP ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN AN

ASSOCIATE

30

On 31 March 2009, the Group acquired the remaining 51% of the
issued share capital of its associated company, SEL, from Sinochina

Pacific Limited, an independent third party. Upon
acquisition, SEL became a wholly-owned subsidiary

completion of the
of the Group.

T 52 AT 0 6 89 E R M = 2 B 5 314,018,000 7T
TN F ;B ¥321,799,0007T ) FERIE T
HRBEE AERANEBETREREGTR

—E-RFER 2 EEE 42,416,000 (= F
TN 840,611,000 7T) © E th F IE & 18
T?H\IZEHIQI\DL ©

BE-—EBEQR 2ES

RZEBEZNF=ZA=+—H AEEMEL
25 = 77 Sinochina Pacific LimitedUZ 88 T B 2 A
BISELER T51%E BT A - RUEE SERC &

SELK R AEEEEMBAR -

HK$’000
BT
Purchase consideration: WHERE
Cash consideration ReRE 40,000
Cash consideration payable RZEZENF=ZA=F+—HZ
as at 31 March 2009 (note 24) JETER & (KB (M3 24) 95,047
Fair values of net assets acquired (as shown below) FMEBASESEZAREBE(ITAR) (16,683)
118,364
Transfer from interests in associates BEHBESNAZ 53,179
Goodwill arising from the acquisition WEEE 7 HE 171,543
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LA B IRE N AT

30 STEP-UP ACQUISITION OF INTEREST IN AN 30 EE—BEBHEATZEE®
ASSOCIATE (continued)
Details of the net assets attributable to the acquisition on 31 March RZZEZEZNF=A=T—HBZ2HREEEEE
2009 are as follows: FEFBAOT

Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair values amounts
WU BT 2
NriE ETREE]
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Property, plant and equipment (note 14) M - BRERFZE(HE14) 48,328 48,455
Prepaid lease payments (note 15) TE A & 5 E (B 5E15) 1,640 916
Trademark (note 17) 1z (K &E17) 10,337 -
Interests in associates (note 18) RE AR 2w (MEEs) 1,079 1,079
Inventories 78 5,838 5,838
Debtors, deposits and prepayments EWIRR - FHHiR® RIEMNRIE 22,079 22,079
Amount due from an associate JE W — I B 2 1 A BR 3K 311 311
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEEY 35,684 35,684
Amount due to a shareholder B — BRI ER R (14,733) (14,733)
Creditors, deposits and accruals ERER  FARSREBRER (27,117) (27,117)
Dividend payable JE& 1~ iR 2 (35,684) (35,684)
Current income tax liabilities EHMENRAE (2,164) (2,164)
Bank borrowings H|ATIE R (9,823) (9,823)
Deferred tax liabilities (note 29) i FE B IR B & (P #E29) (3,064) (1,260)
32,711 23,581
Equity interest acquired Frig A 2 R HE & 51%
Total fair values of net assets acquired A NEEFEZ ANBERSE 16,683
Purchase consideration settled in cash N e 2 WERE (40,000)
Cash and cash equivalents in ERENERAAIZRE R
subsidiaries acquired REFEDY 35,084
Net cash outflow from step-up HE—HBEEARZERN
acquisition of interest in an associate IR & mH F 5 (4,316)
—Z—ZTHF4H  Annual Report 2010 89



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE B IS B B A

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION 31 EBEH
On 2 October 2009, the Company acquired 100% of the issued share RZZEZENF+AZH  AREMBILE=
capital of Great Dragon Petroleum Limited (“Great Dragon”) from FWEEREAREBRAR([EfRE]HEIE
independent third parties (“Acquisition”). BITRA(TWESIE]) -
(a) Details of the net liabilities attributable to the Acquisition are as () WEEEZELMAEFENFBOT
follows:
HK$’000
B¥TR
Purchase consideration: WERE :
Cash consideration WERE 5,000
Direct expenses relating to the Acquisition FRAKBEEMNEES D 111
Fair values of net liabilities acquired FEABEFEZANE 6
Goodwill arising from the Acquisition WHEE 2 EHE 5,117
The net liabilities acquired are as follows: FTKEE ERENT
Acquiree’s
carrying
Fair values amounts
WBBES 2
A RE R T 18
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BETT
Other creditors and accruals Hih iR R FERE A 6 6
(b)  Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of (b) ?{E WHEEBE B RESSEYHRE
the Acquisition: FE T
HK$’000
BETT
Purchase consideration settled in cash NBEeI N2 WBERE 5,000
Direct expenses relating to the Acquisition FHEKETENEES S 111
5,111
Net cash outflow from the Acquisition W EIE 2R e i F5E 5,111
(c) Since the Acquisition, Great Dragon did not contribute revenue (¢ BKREZEERLR EREZz_ZT—ZF
to the Group and had incurred loss of HK$3,594,000 for the year A=t HLEFEHER $ % =g
ended 31 March 2010. Yoat 3 A B 1R 78 53,594,000 7T

If the Acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2009, the Group’s
revenue and the Group’s loss for the year would have been
increased by HK$450,000 and HK$16,000 respectively.

32 DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

1huﬁzﬁ§EA_E§h¢mﬂ—E§§¢ VN
SEzWERAEB 2 AFEEEAS
Al 18 107 ¥ 450,0007T K2 7% #16,0007T ©

32 HE—HEKEBLQF
-

On 26 March 2010, the Company disposed of 100% equity interest Z—FTF=FAZ=+"H ' KRFEIABES
in a subsidiary, Sharp Goal Management Limited, to a wholly-owned 7_E ZREREZRE T? BRAFz —RE2ENB
subsidiary of its ultimate holding company at a consideration of HK$8. 7 & — A W% ‘A A]Sharp Goal Management

No gain or loss is recognised in the disposal.

lelted}% 2 EBRR AR HE S o B O 4 A SR M
S -
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33

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REPORTABLE SEGMENTS

Reportable segments are identified and reported in the manner
consistent with internal reports to the Group that are regularly
reviewed by the chief operating decision-marker (Board of Directors)
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. The chief
operating decision-maker accesses the performance of the reportable
segments based on the revenue and profit/loss presented.

The Group has three reportable segments (i) food and beverages
including branded coffee shops business, and restaurants and bars
business; (ii) investments in securities and (iii) natural resources

business including crude oil trading and mining exploration.

Reportable segment information is presented below:

Year ended 31 March 2010

HEMBHER T

33 BAFEHRMNSE
ATERMNOPENRETELERRE(ES
) CHEMAEERNBREATFHRIRES
BEERZ AR TUERRER - EEL
BRRERBAE2RZWZEIREF EiEFT
HEFTERN B ZRRE -

AEBE=ZHAATE2HRNIE : VEK &
EmEMYEEEL  UREBRBEBER
(BFRE  RGDRABRER (B RH
B MEEHE) o

ATEBRNOEEHZFNWMT -

BE-ZE-—ZEFE=-A=+—HILEE

Foodand  Investments Natural
beverages  in securities resources Total
3 BERE AARER HEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BET T BET T BT
Reportable segment revenue ATERNDERSE 537,924 99 = 538,023
Reportable segment (loss)/ ATEHRNSE(ER)/
profit i F) (14,351) 748 (4,440) (18,043)
Included in reportable segment (loss)/ ATE2HNHDE(ER)/
profit are: iR UK EC I
Share of result of an associate Frih—FHE N e £4E 221 - - 221
Depreciation of property, plant and mME HMENEREZ
equipment E (32,116) - () (32,118)
Reversal of impairment loss mE BERHREZ
on property, plant and equipment FEEERE 333 - - 333
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRNEEREL
payments i3 (158) - - (158)
Impairment loss on goodwill BEZHESR (29,174) - - (29,174)
Amortisation of trademarks [EREA: ¥ (7,889) = = (7,889)
Impairment loss on AHEECREN
an available-for-sale investment FEEE = (2,345) = (2,345)
Reportable segment assets ATEBNIBEE 424,408 27,499 5,180 457,087
Included in reportable segment assets: BYTERMNOBEERRE -
Interest in an associate i — B2 N A 2R 932 - - 932
Additions to non-current assets ETEBEERE
(other than financial instruments (BT ANMBELR
and deferred tax assets) BEEBRIN 30,482 = 5,140 35,622
Reportable segment liabilities AFERNIEEE 61,458 10 310 61,778

—FE—FEER  Annual Report 2010 91



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HEMBRENT

33 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2009

33 BAFEHRNSE@®

BE-—EZhAFE=A=+—HLEE

Food and Investments Natural
beverages in securities resources Total
ER BREE AARER B
HK$000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT BT
Reportable segment revenue AFEBNIBEWRE 311,106 6,466 - 317,572
Reportable segment loss BEFERN2EERE (130,504) (25,322) - (155,826)
Included in reportable segment loss are: BYTEHMNDEBERRE
Share of results of associates FrihBt & N e ¥4 11,229 - - 11,229
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BELEREZ
equipment neE (22,096) - - (22,096)
Impairment loss on property, plant and mME BEEREZ
equipment HEFE (15,529) - - (15,529)
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZRERIE (118,700) - - (118,700)
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHEEZIREN
investments B E B - (4,222) - (4,222)
Decrease in fair value of an investment REYME Y
property NAERD (3,100) - - (3,100)
Reportable segment assets BFEHENSEEE 470,317 43,720 - 514,037
Included in reportable segment assets are: 7B T 2RO DB EERIE ¢
Interest in an associate i —fBE R Rz 1,079 - - 1,079
Additions to non-current assets FREBEERNE
(other than financial instruments and (B T B MIEER
deferred tax assets) BEERBRIN 192,783 - - 192,783
Reportable segment liabilities BFEHRN,EER 179,460 24 - 179,484
Reconciliation of reportable segment loss to loss before taxation is AT2BOSBEB LGB ATEEN
provided as follows: HIRWMT :
2010 2009
—E-=F ZETNF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T 7T I
Reportable segment loss BAFEHKNIESE (18,043) (155,826)
Finance income B 7% U A 81 1,247
Finance costs P%EE A (219) (451)
Unallocated corporate income Ao BA R A 380 2,098
Unallocated corporate expenses KO AR H (4,215) (8,428)
Loss before taxation BBt Al B 18 (22,016) (161,360)
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LA B IRE N

33 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued) 33 ATERNDIEH

Reportable segment assets and liabilities are reconciled to total assets

and liabilities as follows:

ATEBNOEEERBERAEERES

IR :

it

¥

2010 2009

—E-EF —EETNEF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT

Reportable segment assets BETFEBRNSEEE 457,087 514,037
Cash and cash equivalents RENRIREEEY 44,119 110,091
Deferred tax assets EERIAE E 1,476 -
Other unallocated assets HMkoBREE 424 1,843
Total assets Mg E 503,106 625,971
2010 2009

—E-FF —ETNF

HK$’000 HK$°000

BT T BT T

Reportable segment liabilities BFERNSEERS 61,778 179,484
Deferred tax liabilities EERIEAE 19,557 21,101
Bank borrowings RITE 16,500 18,500
Other unallocated liabilities EmAoBELAE 1,924 1,424
Total liabilities weE 99,759 220,509

The Group’s operations in food and beverages business are carried

out in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland China, the investments

in securities business is carried out in Hong Kong and Singapore

and the natural resources business is carried out in Mainland China.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue by geographical

AEEREE HMERPEABEEER
X RBEBRAMBERLEESREEXEB R
RAEBAREEERARERER - U T REM

BE D AEBAWKE DN

location:
Revenue
U =
2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF

HK$’000 HK$’000 %

BET T BT T
Hong Kong E5 522,913 291,716 92
Singapore #T N3 12,860 16,664 5

Mainland China A B A 2,250 9,192
538,023 317,572 100

The Group had no inter-segment sales for the years ended 31 March

2010 and 2009.

NEE-_ZE-ZFR_ZTETNE=A=1+—

BLEEE AKELED BB ZIATHE -
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GEeHBHREMT
33 REPORTABLE SEGMENTS (continued)

34

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the total revenue for the
year ended 31 March 2010 and 2009.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s carrying amounts of non-
current assets (excluding financial instruments and deferred tax assets)

33 AFEHRNDE®
HE-_Z—ZFRKR-_FTTNF=A=+—H
IEFE  EXFHEERBEMGAUE A 10%3K A
J:o

AT AR E D 2 AEENERBEE (T
BRMBETARNEEREEE)NIREED

by geographical location: #r
2010 2009
—2-%F _—TTnF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEFR BT
Hong Kong EB 310,426 344,781
Singapore N3k 1,021 1,560
Mainland China H B A b 47 104
311,494 346,445

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Directors’ emoluments
Emoluments paid and payable to the Directors of the Company are as

3 EERSEHRITHAEZEHE

EEME
EXNMENARREEZMEWT :

follows:
2010
—E-%%
Salaries and Retirement
Directors’ other benefit scheme
fees benefits  contribution Total
Fek RBAEF
EEwe HMERM FEMEX B
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BET T BT T BET R
Executive Director: HITES :
Lily Chow IEEIE] - 1,212 91 1,303
Chang Wan Lung, Robert i E - 1,540 11 1,551
Fan Amy Lizhen (note a) HE A (M 5Ta) - 497 6 503
Cheung Ka Heng, Frankie (note a) ok 52 18 (B 5Fa) = 497 6 503
Independent Non-Executive Director: B I FEHITEE :
Shinichi Yonehara (note b) KIRIE— (M 5Eb) 120 = = 120
Wu King Cheong & B 120 = = 120
Leung Kwong Kin 2 E 120 - - 120
Lau Kai Shu, Frank 2| X AR 120 = = 120
480 3,746 114 4,340
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el BHREMT
34 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR 3 BEERERTBRAEZME @)
MANAGEMENT (continued) N
Directors’ emoluments (continued) 0 EAC )
2009
—EENF
Salaries and Retirement
Directors’ other benefit scheme
fees benefits  contribution Total
\ Fek RAREH
Exwe HMEHMN  FrEMER s
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AETT AETT BET T BET T
Executive Director: HITESE
Lily Chow EESET - 1,212 91 1,303
Chang Wan Lung, Robert REEE - 1,432 12 1,444
Independent Non-Executive Director: B M EHITESE :
Shinichi Yonehara KEE— 120 - - 120
Wu King Cheong A A% & 120 - - 120
Leung Kwong Kin (note c) 23 @ (B 5Ec) 120 - - 120
Lau Kai Shu, Frank (note c) 28 (M 7Fc) 120 - - 120
480 2,644 103 3,227
Note: B RE -
(a)  Appointed on 2 October 2009. (@) RIZEZNFTAZBEEME-
(b)  Resigned on 1 April 2010. by R=ZF—=FWMA—HEIE -
(c)  Appointed on 1 April 2008. (00 RZZEZNFHA-—HEZRE-
Dr Chow Yei Ching, Mr Chow Vee Tsung, Oscar, Mr Kuok Hoi & 78 Eﬂ_ﬂ Bt - A#HELRE LBAELAER
Sang and Mr Ho Sai Hou (resigned on 16 September 2009) did not fr] %5‘6 E(BERZZEZNF LA TAE
receive directors’ emoluments from the Company (2009: nil) and its ) WEEMARE R /H B 28 A~ 7] Y BX 2= =5 B
subsidiaries. (ZFEZNF  £) -
These Directors are also directors of CIHL, the ultimate holding AR ZEFEFHRREERAFHE - BEF
company, and are paid by CIHL in respect of services provided to ZEEZF HIBERTHREAETBEREEER
CIHL Group as a whole, including the Company and its subsidiaries. B(EEARAREMERR)REZRER
®EZTwM -

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included two (2009: two) Directors,
details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments paid
to the remaining three (2009: three) highest paid individuals for both
years are as follows:

i o
A
lj-lg

AANLTBEME(ZZETNF W
REZHMESFBEHI W E - K%
S'Zﬁ%ﬁ%"l—f%(_ﬁgﬂi P=4)
TALTZBE T ¢

NWEH?EEWW
[
At

ity
& Yot

2010 2009

—g-2% -—=Tnm

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T 7S T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind H4e - EZAL & H 12 7 4,161 2,524
Contribution to retirement schemes BIKE 2 = 153 30
Performance-based bonus KRB Z L4 = 175
4,314 2,729
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HEMBREMT
34 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

35

36

37

MANAGEMENT (continued)

Employees’ emoluments (continued)

The emoluments of the remaining three (2009: three) highest paid
individuals fall within the following bands:

34

EENSRTBRAEZHME@®

EE%HM (&)
HHB=F2(ZZ2ZNF : ZR)KSFALA
BeBmE DA TNHMAR

2010 2009
—2-®5 —TTNF
Nil-HK$1,000,000 4775 11,000,000 7T = 2
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 7 151,000,001 78 # 1,500,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 78 1,500,001 7T-% #52,000,000 7T 1 -
3 3
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 35 HAREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Company had contingent RIBEBR  ARRCREZE2EWB A A
liabilities in respect of guarantees issued for banking facilities of ERTFRERTHEMIBREREZRZABE
amounts up to HK$19,686,000 (2009: HK$29,680,000) granted to its 19,686,0007C ( ZEZE N : 75 #29,680,0007T )
wholly-owned subsidiaries. ZHAREE -
CAPITAL COMMITMENT 36 BEAREE
The Group RE
2010 2009
—E-2F —TTAF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Capital commitment for plant and equipment B K i 2 B A A E
— Contracted but not provided for - B ELERGIE - 613
OPERATING LEASES 37 REMAE
The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA

The Group had commitment for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of renting of
premises which fall due as follows:

AEEREFAERETAREZLELE R
EMARARIMZzHREHLAESLE  BHOE
mERIR

2010 2009

—E-EF —EENF

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T ST

Within one year R—F R 109,556 102,438
In the second to fifth year inclusive EFE_EZRHERN 98,054 95,251
Over five years AEE 2,779 4,834
210,389 202,523

The above lease commitments only include commitments for basic
rentals, and do not include commitments for additional rental payable
(contingent rents), if any, which are to be generally determined by
applying pre-determined percentages to future sales less the basic
rentals of the respective leases, as it is not possible to determine in
advance the amount of such additional rentals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s coffee machines were
rented out under operating leases. They were leased out for periods
ranging from two to three years. The future minimum lease payments
receivable by the Group under non-cancellable operating leases for
each of the following periods are as follows:

37

HEMBHER T

KEMBEE®

AEBESEHEAA

R 4 HA SR - AN £ [ O WE A DA AR A AR B
B A -—Z=F - BETTHEZELH
e AEEN TH M KRR B%RE
MEZEMT

2010 2009

—2-2F —TThF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BET T BT T

Within one year R—FR 757 699
In the second to fifth year inclusive F-_EZRHER 858 783
1,615 1,482

SHARE OPTION

Share option scheme — employee services

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted by
the shareholders pursuant to a resolution passed on 20 September 2002
for the primary purpose of providing full-time employees, directors,
part time employees with weekly work hours of 15 hours or above
and advisors and consultants to the Company or any subsidiary with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in the Company and
to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. The Scheme will expire on 19 September 2012.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Scheme and any other schemes is not permitted to exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the date of shareholders’
approval of the Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) or, if such 10%
limit is renewed, at the date of shareholders’ approval of the renewal of
the Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum aggregate number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any other share
option schemes, must not exceed 30% of the total number of shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
then in issue, without prior approval from the Company’s and CIHL’s
shareholders. Each grant of options to any Director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder must be approved by independent non-
executive directors of the Company and CIHL. Where any grant of
options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director or any of their respective associates would result in the shares
of the Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of options
already granted and to be granted in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s
issued share capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 in the
12-month period up to the date of such grant must be approved in
advance by the Company’s and CIHL’s shareholders.
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B

BRESE-EERHK

ApA oz BkESS(ZEE])RE
“EE_FRAATHBBZIREARERR
R TZENTEARRHALMKE QA
ZEBRES BEE BBEIHE+RNEIMN
EZHBEERFAANERERSEE
BARRRZHEZ  UHBL2EERERS
ARBREBH 2BENTRBL  #KM<
ARBREBRAESTE - L EHR_-F
——FAAt+NBER-

BB Z T 8 sk K st £ ATk i 2 BB IR A iR
BB EHBEARRE BITRMD AR ELR
HEZETEE BR10% ([FHEIREREE]) » =
AR EFE Tt SRR E H 5 aZ210%
REEHENBZRE  -BAEEEE KT
FrEBREEEETEMBTZEZRMNEA
2 NMSHRAARN T BT ZIRH30% °
REARRRETEHBERKRE Z B L HE -
PAME ] — {8 fE R T T 8 B A + 2 B Ak e
BOBETHSBUERARARBETZRMD
1% ° W PEMES - (THARKEERREZ
F—EEREHELARARETEHEB ZE
TIEMTESIE - WEREEREL B
HATEFIHRSESEEMBBEALEL Z
BRE cE8yEEREEHLET-@AR
HEATHFEEER G ER 2 BT
REFETZARNFRDBBARE 2 E %
1T IR ZR0.19% K 48 (B 8 175 # 5,000,000 7T - L BE
PR A EIE AR D B R B T BIR 2 AR R =B S o
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

Share option scheme — employee services (continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 30 days from the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per grant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the
effective period of the Scheme to be notified by the Board of Directors
which shall not be later than 10 years from the date of grant. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the highest of the closing price of the Company’s share
on the date of grant, the average closing price of the share on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant, and the nominal value.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted would be 171,355,870
shares (after subdivision). No options have been granted or exercised
under the Scheme during the year (2009: nil) and none are outstanding
at 31 March 2010.

Share option — consultancy services

In addition to the share option scheme — employee services mentioned
in note 38(a), on 10 February 2010, the Company has conditionally
granted options to two consultants to subscribe for an aggregate of
150,000,000 shares (after subdivision) at an initial exercise price of
HKS$0.30 per share, subject to adjustment and an option period of two
years from the date of the option agreement.

The options may only be exercisable after the relevant consultants
have provided the consultancy services and the completion of
the investments by the Company or its subsidiaries, in terms and
conditions to the satisfaction of the Company. The consultancy
services include sourcing for and introduction of investment projects
to the Company and lining up of investors for the said projects.

The fair value per option at grant date is HK$0.0856 and is determined
by using the Binomial Option Pricing Model.

No option is exercised and lapsed during the reporting period.

The significant inputs into the Binomial Option Pricing Model are as
follows:

Share price at the grant date HK$0.265
Exercise price per share HK$0.30
Expected volatility 66.46%
Expected life of options 2 years
Expected dividend yield 0.24%
Annual risk-free interest rate 0.52%

The volatility measured at the standard derivation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share price over the
last three years from the grant date.
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IR

BRESE-EERB(E)
EHEREERE L BSHE308 AREE
BERRAE S B LT AR R T 2 BERRE o
B AR RE AT AR R X AT B RN R T Bl 2 Bk
RAEAERITE  EFTLERAENHARE
HEaE  EHHRAEENEL B R+
FoTEBARMADRZESELRE B
TN ORARRQ T IR E B B E B AT Uk
TE AQAARGREEZLBHTEEAR
S HBEBIAFEHWRHERANRRRKRDZ
HE UREEAE-

MATEZERLBREREZHITEM A
172 8% P& 1D B8 5171,355,870 % A% 17 (#F 48
%) c REEFERNWERBEZTEIR K TERE
BE(ZZEZENF B RR T —ZF=A
=T+ —RWERITHEZBERE -

BRE-ZARE

B BT 5E38(a) Tl 2 BE AR M AT E1B B RS S -
RZZE—ZFTF_A+H ARREEGHLH
M % B 1% A] SR B A ££150,000,000 B A% 19
(R 2BERE VPTEERESREE
0.307T ' WITHEER FTHAERMBAREDRRAE
R AE R B B AT R A o

BRERNEEBEREHREARSE  ARKE
NCIDSE S NCTR @ NN D oA 3 S
HEREBRER  FAITE - HEARBERER
RABMBRENGBREREB KA LA B B
BEREE -

FRRERENE T B H 2 2R EAE0.0856
T A ZEBEX | HEEEEAETE -
RREPR - REBREETERKR -

HI-EA T ERA B AZEREEN
™~

RIEE BB ZRE 75 150,265 7T

RITEE 75 10,3077
TEH R B IE R 66.46%
T8 HA B % 1 F HA 24
T8 HA R B & 0.24%
2 B b G FI X 0.52%
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SHARE OPTION (continued)

Share option — consultancy services (continued)

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options amounting to
HK$12,840,000 are to be recognised as share option — consultancy
services received over the vesting period together with a corresponding
increase in equity. The expenses charged to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2010 amounted to HK$862,000.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group has established various retirement benefit schemes for
the benefit of its staff in Hong Kong and overseas. In Hong Kong,
the Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance
(the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
trustees. Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice of staying
within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas
all new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December 2000 are
required to join the MPF Scheme.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5% of the
relevant payroll costs per employee per month to the MPF Scheme.
The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from both
employees and the Group at rates ranging from 5% to 7.5% of the
employee’s basic salary, depending on the length of service with the
Group.

The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China contribute 20% to 34% of
the basic salaries of their employees to defined contribution retirement
schemes operated by municipal governments. Under the schemes, the
employees also contribute 8% to 13% of their basic salaries.

The Group’s subsidiary in Singapore contributes 5% to 14.5% of the
basic salaries of their employees to a defined contribution retirement
scheme operated by central government. Under the scheme, the
employees also contribute 5% to 20% of their basic salaries.

Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme prior to
vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions payable by the
Group are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions. As at 31
March 2010, the total amount of forfeited contributions, which arose
upon employees leaving the ORSO Scheme and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable in future years, was nil (2009: nil).
The amount of forfeited contributions utilised in this manner during
the year was nil (2009: nil). As at 31 March 2010, payable contributions
of HK$8,000 (2009: HK$8,000) due in respect of the reporting period
were paid to the ORSO Scheme in April 2010.
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BRE-ZHARE(E)
iR B IR 2 A B A % 12,840,000
TR ERBREBHARNZERE - BEHE AR
FWAAEENER - sFTABE_T—ZTF=
A=Z+—BLFEZHAKZRZIHAES
#862,0007T °

R K12 R
AEEREBERBIBERIZEENKRR
MEtdl -REE  AEE2EBREHRRR
CB 2R IR 5T B 5 0)) 5E it 2 B 2 R IR 5T 3
(W AEEAE D ERR_ZTTFE+_H
BCERHMERA BT BRIDRILZBHER
BestE (BRI ESTE]) FIZEE
HEEEESR VYHESAREER A2
BEsEKEZRBENRESFEETHY
WRT—ORER  BEREBER L EEE
KREH2EBRBEEFE  -MAR_TTEF
T-A-—BARIXUBRABZHER  AF2HE
BEEEE -

N\
\|

RBEEFTINKE  AKERBRESE
MEFEREEABARN%TE - HATE
it 8 BRERAKEEAREEEFN%
E75%RERE - RFREFEME -

AEBERFBEARMZHERBRHRAAFZE
ZEERFERARGEELHR  HXERE
BEER Z220%%34% - RIZEFTE  ER
TRAEHEEEFH8%E13% 2 5 -

AEBR IS Z B QR A RETEE
ZEERFERARGEELHR  HRERE
BEEH Z5%E145% - RIEFHEE - €S
TRAEMEHE EE#5%E20%2 #5R

APESHTEXNERREEHBRSEFTE B R
TERBZEHED  AEAREENRE
FHRAZA R-_ZTE—ZTF=_A=+—H "
EABETE K EREBATE S B A B{EH
BARFERBNERZGKERAB AT
—EEANF D) RAFENRFEASA
ZRWEREE AT (ZETZAF : T) o R
—E—ZTFZA=+—H BEHEZEHN
HFEES,000T (ZZZ JLF - B ¥8,0007T)
BER-ZE—ZTFNARAEETEHZ -

99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B &M T

40 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 40

Details of the material transactions entered into during the year and

FHEALZRS
FR-BEMEBEATITIZEARS RIHE

balances at the end of the reporting period with related parties are as LR EBREFBOT ¢
follows:
The Group
AEE
2010 2009
—g-g%& -—zIaf
HK$’000 HK$’000
B¥TR BT
Transactions x5
Management fee income from an associate B—RHBEARZERERA 710 -
Purchase of inventories from an associate m—EBEARRERS - (29,174)
Rental income from an associate BE—EBEa R zHE WA = 456
Interest income from an associate B — e QR ZFB A = 229
Purchase of property, plant and equipment M—ERRANBAGEE
from a fellow subsidiary WM WEREE (150) -
Management fee paid to a fellow M—ERRMNEBRT N2
subsidiary (note) BEIRER M) (800) (800)
Insurance premium paid to a fellow subsidiary [ —E R RZMEB R G 2R E (50) -
Rental expenses paid to fellow m—ERAMNBEAR XN
subsidiaries HE I (283) (378)
Balances i ek
Amount due from an associate & Uk — 6 B & A B) bR 3K 142 311
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE {5 B 4% 12 AR A R IR K (595) (230)

The emoluments of the Directors and other members of key
management during the year were disclosed in note 34.

Note:

Management fee paid in respect of the management agreement entered into

REFER SEFREREAMEBKA
2% B R W EE3a B -

B =t

SNERERAERERTHIRSE

with CIHL Group. BR 7% 3 5% ©
The Company
¥ NN
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZETNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Transactions 5
Management fees charged to subsidiaries WEHBARZERE 3,621 1,823
Balances F=g23
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW I B A B 3 404,129 421,701
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT I B A BN 3 = (8,369)
Amount due to ultimate holding company JE S B AR IR A AR 7R (583) (201)
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41 NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 41
CASH FLOWS

Cash generated from operations

RERTRERME

EEEEZRSE

2010 2009
—E-=F —ETNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
Loss before taxation B B A1 S 18 (22,016) (161,360)
Adjustments for: FE
Share of results of associates Frib B & R Al ¥ 8 (221) (11,229)
Interest income from bank deposits |ITHE R E WA (81) (1,247)
Interest income from amount due from FEUR — B & R E 2
an associate FE A = (229)
Interest income from deposits and prepayments FHZRe RENKREBZMERA (219) (1,869)
Interest on bank borrowings |ITERZFE 219 451
Depreciation e 32,118 22,096
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TR ERIE 2 & 158 -
Amortisation of trademarks P 2 8 7,889 -
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME BEERRKEZ
plant and equipment BB FEE 322 709
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment loss M WEREE(CRERIE
on property, plant and equipment /)R EEE (333) 15,529
Impairment loss on goodwill HEZBEEISE 29,174 118,700
Impairment loss on available-for-sale AHfHEZRER
investments B B 18 2,345 4,222
(Gain)/loss on investments at fair value through REFRERALEBEREEZEER
profit or loss, net o (), EiE 8 (3,044) 27,676
Decrease in fair value of an investment property WEMEZ AR ERD - 3,100
Provision for inventories to net realisable value FEAEREEEE 331 856
Share option — consultancy services received BRE-EBESHEARY 862 -
Operating cash flows before movements in EEELEBERIZ
working capital KEBERE 47,504 17,405
Changes in working capital LEESE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEMm RS (2,233) 1,870
Decrease in debtors, deposits and JEWWRR - FHEER
prepayments I8 5 SRR R A 5,246 5,490
Decrease in investments at fair value through REZEREANEERE 2
profit or loss wERD 25,541 47,701
Increase/(decrease) in creditors, deposits and JEMIRER - F A MNTERE B
accruals O ) 3,293 (39,301)
Increase in deferred income IE IE U A2 N 3,333 2,488
Increase/(decrease) in amount due to ultimate &~ % XA IR N Bl bR 3R
holding company O ) 365 (1,553)
Decrease in amounts due to associates JE < B & 2 B IR BURLD = (2,616)
83,049 31,484

—ETFEFR
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42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 2 FENRAITF
Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
or registration/ share capital/ Number of registered capital
Name of company operation Class of shares registered capital shares  held by the Company  Principal activities
ALY F 3.1 BRARMRE ARARACERS
NCEE: FER R4 & Al Rx/ERRAR RO®E RAAEMREESE TEXH
Directly Indirectly
ER GE:
% %
Capital World (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$5,000 5,000 - 100 Restaurant and bar
Ex(FE)AERAT BA gl s, 0007 EERER
Champ Success (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Restaurant
Limited &R il AT 2B
K& (ZE)BRAA
Chevalier Pacific Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000,000 200,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
EtZSERAR &F £t F200,000,0007C and trading of food
and beverages
REERREHRES
Chevalier Pacific Catering Mainland China Not applicable US$1,800,000  Not applicable - 100 Operation of coffee
Management (Beijing) Company HEA TER 1,800,000 7T TR shops
Limited (note) TAMYERE
ETAVPHERER(LR)
BRAR(FEE)
CL Holdings Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$200,000 200,000 - 100 Investment holding
&8 g 78 #200,0007C RERR
Eastech Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$6,080,832 6,080,832 - 100 Restaurant and bar
REARAA &8 E§: 7 %6,080,8327C EEREE
Giant Dragon (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 100 Restaurant
EEER)ERLA &8 LR 10,0007 2B
Giant Ocean (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$176 176 - 100 Restaurant and bar
B+ (B N 5 Ef AR1I6TC ZERI
BE(ER)ERAA EiB L 176 ZERER
Grand Concept (Hong Kong) Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Restaurant and bar
Limited &R i1 ¥ REREE
BE(BR)BERAA
Great Dragon Petroleum Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 100 - Trade of crude oil
EEABERAR BE e 7 10,0007 and oil related
products
R R & R
HEERNES
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42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2 FEMBAI @
Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
or registration/ share capital/ Number of registered capital
Name of company operation Class of shares registered capital shares  held by the Company  Principal activities
At ExnE BEIRAR RARBAECHRT
AL FEX ki &5l RE/ERBE RO#E REGEMREAEE FEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# GE:3
% %
Igor’s Group Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK§$2 2 - 100 Restaurant
BAREERERAA B L BT £E
Info Dragon Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 100 Trading and
ERERAA 3 LR 10,0007 manufacturing of
food and beverages
ERRERE S
Marson Consultants Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10 10 - 100 Restaurant and bar
KEERARAA ) ER BB EERE®R
New Global (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 100 Restaurant and bar
HEERB)ERLA B LA 10,0007 EERER
Orient Talent (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK§$2 2 - 100 Restaurant and bar
E7(FB)ERAT B L BT ZERERE
Pacific Coffee Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$77,355 77,355 - 100 Trading of coffee
BB L B77,3557C products, operation
of coffee shops
and provision of
maintenance
services
MHERES
BEm RRE
RERERB
Pacific Coffee Company (S) Pte Ltd Singapore Ordinary §§100,000 100,000 - 100 Operation of coffee
A L 100,000%7 M3 7T shops
& mk e
Pacific Coffee (Holdings) Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$40,034 400,337 - 100 Investment holding
Islands L 40,0343 T RERK
EERIEE
PCC Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK§$2 2 - 100 Operation of coffee
B LR BT shops
5 m ke
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42 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 2 FEMBQF @
Place or country Issued and Effective percentage of
of incorporation paid up issued share capital/
or registration/ share capital/ Number of registered capital
Name of company operation Class of shares registered capital shares  held by the Company  Principal activities
EALYR-F 3.1 1 BETRAR KARABEEERS
kS FEX gl RE/ERBE ROBE REAFEMRREAEE FEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE F:
% %
PCC Investment (II) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Operation of coffee
BE el BT shops
mEmsE
Pacific York (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HKS$2 2 - 100 Restaurant and bar
BAEE)BRAA BA L BT EERER
Sharp Rise Limited British Virgin Ordinary USS1 1 100 - Investment holding
MABRAR Islands Er IE in operation of
RRERNEE coffee shops
REBBRRMEE
2E
Sinochina Enterprises Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$100 100 100 - Investment holding
Islands Ex 1007 REER
ABRAES
Success Well (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 10,000 - 100 Restaurant and bar
AR (BR)ERAT &k ¢ 10,0007 REREE
Super Target (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 100 - 100 Restaurant and bar
ER(FR)BRAA BB LR AE1007T EERER
Chevalier Catering Management Mainland China Not applicable US$140,000  Not applicable - 100 Operation of coffee
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (note) HE A NER 140,000 7 TEA shops
ETEHMER gEmeE
(L) BRAR (FE)
Note: Bt 5T

Established in Mainland China as wholly foreign owned enterprises.
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